
PURCHASE OF COMPREHENSIVE INMATE 

MENT AL HEALTH SERVICES AGREEMENT 


THIS AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made this N day of 4{2rif... 2016, by and 
between the Adams County Board of County Commissioners, located at 4430 South Adams 
County Parkway, Brighton, Colorado 80601, hereinafter referred to as the "County," and 
Community Reach Center, located at 8931 Huron Street, Thornton, Colorado 80260 hereinafter 
referred to as the "Contractor." The County and the Contractor may be collectively referred to 
herein as the "Parties". 

The County and the Contractor, for the consideration herein set forth, agree as follows: 

1. 	 SERVICES OF THE CONTRACTOR: 

1.1. 	 All work shall be in accordance with the attached RFP 2015.348 and the Contractor's 
response to the RFP 2015.348 attached hereto as Exhibit A, and incorporated herein by 
reference. Should there be any discrepancy between Exhibit A and this Agreement the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement shall prevail. 

1.2. 	 Emergency Services: In the event the Adams County Board of County Commissioners 
declares an emergency, the County may request additional services (of the type 
described in this Agreement or otherwise within the expertise of the Contractor) to be 
performed by the Contractor. If the County requests such additional services, the 
Contractor shall provide such services in a timely fashion given the nature of the 
emergency, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. Unless otherwise agreed to in 
writing by the parties, the Contractor shall bill for such services at the rates provided 
for in this Agreement. 

2. 	 RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COUNTY: The County shall provide information as 
necessary or requested by the Contractor to enable the Contractor's performance under this 
Agreement. 

3. 	 TERM: 

3.1. 	 Term of Agreement: The Term of this Agreement shall be from April 1,2016 through 
December 12,2018. 

3.2. 	 Extension Option: The County, at its sole option, may offer to extend this Agreement as 
necessary for up to two, one year extensions providing satisfactory service is given and 
all terms and conditions of this Agreement have been fulfilled. Such extensions must be 
mutually agreed upon in writing by the County and the Contractor. 

4. 	 PAYMENT AND FEE SCHEDULE: The County shall pay the Contractor for services 
furnished under this Agreement, and the Contractor shall accept as full payment for those 
services, the sum of: 

Year 1 - $358,187.40 (April I-December 31,2016) 
Year 2 - $491,916.00 (January I-December 31,2017) 
Year 3 - $506,973.00 (January I-December 31,2018) 

http:506,973.00
http:491,916.00
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4.1. Payment pursuant to this Agreement, whether in full or in part, is subject to and 
contingent upon the continuing availability of County funds for the purposes hereof. In 
the event that funds become unavailable, as determined by the County, the County may 
immediately terminate this Agreement or amend it accordingly. 

5. 	 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: In providing services under this Agreement, the 
Contractor acts as an independent contractor and not as an employee of the County. The 
Contractor shall be solely and entirely responsible for hislher acts and the acts of hislher 
employees, agents, servants, and subcontractors during the term and performance of this 
Agreement. No employee, agent, servant, or subcontractor of the Contractor shall be deemed 
to be an employee, agent, or servant of the County because of the performance of any 
services or work under this Agreement. The Contractor, at its expense, shall procure and 
maintain workers' compensation insurance as required by law. Pursuant to the Workers' 
Compensation Act § 8-40-202(2)(b )(IV), c.R.S., as amended, the Contractor 
understands that it and its employees and servants are not entitled to workers' 
compensation benefits from the County. The Contractor further understands that it is 
solely obligated for the payment of federal and state income tax on any moneys earned 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

6. 	 NONDISCRIMINATION: 

6.1. 	The Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or qualified applicant 
for employment because of age, race, color, religion, marital status, disability, sex, 
or national origin. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available 
to employees and applicants for employment, notices provided by the local public 
agency setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. Adams 
County is an equal opportunity employer. 
6.1.1. The Contractor will cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all 

subcontracts for any work covered by this Agreement so that such provisions 
will be binding upon each subcontractor, provided that the foregoing provisions 
shall not apply to contracts or subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or 
raw materials. 

7. 	 INDEMNIFICATION: The Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County, 
its officers, agents, and employees for, from, and against any and all claims, suits, expenses, 
damages, or other liabilities, including reasonable attorney fees and court costs, arising out of 
damage or injury to persons, entities, or property, caused or sustained by any person(s) as a 
result of the Contractor's performance or failure to perform pursuant to the terms of this 
Agreement or as a result of any subcontractors ' performance or failure to perform pursuant to 
the terms of this Agreement. 

8. 	 INSURANCE: The Contractor agrees to maintain insurance of the following types and 
amounts: 

8.1. 	 Commercial General Liability Insurance: to include products liability, completed 
operations, contractual, broad form property damage and personal injury. 
8.1.1. Each Occurrence: 	 $1,000,000 
8.1.2. General Aggregate: 	 $2,000,000 



8.2. 	 Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance: to include all motor 

vehicles owned, hired, leased, or borrowed. 

8.2.1. 	 Bodily Injury/Property Damage: $1 ,000,000 (each accident) 
8.2.2. Personal Injury Protection: Per Colorado Statutes 

8.3.Workers' Compensation Insurance: Per Colorado Statutes 
8.4. 	 Professional Liability Insurance: to include coverage for damages or claims for 

damages arising out of the rendering, or failure to render, any professional services, as 
applicable. 
8.4.1. Each Occurrence: 	 $1,000,000 
8.4.2. This insurance requirement applies only to the Contractors who are performing 

services under this Agreement as professionals licensed under the laws of the 
State of Colorado, such as physicians, lawyers, engineers, nurses, mental health 
providers, and any other licensed professionals. 

8.5. 	 Adams County as "Additional Insured": The Contractor's commercial general liability, 
and comprehensive automobile liability, insurance policies and/or certificates of 
insurance shall be issued to include Adams County as an "additional insured" and shall 
include the following provisions: 
8.5.1. 	Underwriters shall have no right of recovery or subrogation against the County, 

it being the intent of the parties that the insurance policies so affected shall 
protect both parties and be primary coverage for any and all losses resulting from 
the actions or negligence of the Contractor. 

8.5.2. 	The insurance companies issuing the policy or policies shall have no recourse 
against the County for payment of any premiums due or for any assessments 
under any form of any policy. 

8.5.3. 	Any and all deductibles contained in any insurance policy shall be assumed by 
and at the sole risk of the Contractor. 

8.6. 	 Licensed Insurers: All insurers of the Contractor must be licensed or approved to do 
business in the State of Colorado. Upon failure of the Contractor to furnish, deliver 
and/or maintain such insurance as provided herein, this Agreement, at the election of 
the County, may be immediately declared suspended, discontinued, or terminated. 
Failure of the Contractor in obtaining and/or maintaining any required insurance shall 
not relieve the Contractor from any liability under this Agreement, nor shall the 
insurance requirements be construed to conflict with the obligations of the Contractor 
concerning indemnification. 

8.7. 	 Endorsement: Each insurance policy herein required shall be endorsed to state that 
coverage shall not be suspended, voided, or canceled without thirty (30) days prior 
written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the County. 

8.8. 	 Proof oflnsurance: At any time during the term of this Agreement, the County may 
require the Contractor to provide proof of the insurance coverage or policies required 
under this Agreement. 

9. WARRANTY: 



9.1. The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the County that all work, equipment, and 
materials furnished under the Agreement are free from defects in workmanship and 
materials for a period of one year after final acceptance by the County. The Contractor 
further warrants and guarantees that the plans and specifications incorporated herein are 
free of fault and defect sufficient for Contractor to warrant the finished product after 
completion date. Should the Contractor fail to proceed promptly in accordance with 
this guarantee, the County may have such work performed at the expense of the 
Contractor. This section does not relieve the Contractor from liability for defects that 
become known after one year. 

10. TERMINATION: 

10.1. For Cause: If, through any cause, the Contractor or the County fails to fulfill its 
obligations under this Agreement in a timely and proper manner, or if the Contractor or 
County violates any of the covenants, conditions, or stipulations of this Agreement, the 
County or the Contractor shall thereupon have the right to immediately tenninate this 
Agreement, upon giving written notice to the Contractor or the County of such 
tennination and specifying the effective date thereof. 

10.2. For Convenience: The County may tenninate this Agreement at any time by giving 
written notice as specified herein to the other party, which notice shall be given at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of the termination. If this Agreement is 
terminated by the County, the Contractor will be paid an amount that bears the same 
ratio to the total compensation as the services actually performed bear to the total 
services the Contractor was to perform under this Agreement, less payments previously 
made to the Contractor under this Agreement. 

11. MUTUAL UNDERSTANDINGS: 

11 .1. Jurisdiction and Venue: The laws of the State of Colorado shall govern as to the 
interpretation, validity, and effect of this Agreement. The parties agree that jurisdiction 
and venue for any disputes arising under this Agreement shall be with Adams County, 
Colorado. 

11.2. Compliance with Laws: During the perfonnance of this Agreement, the Contractor 
agrees to strictly adhere to all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and 
regulations, including all licensing and permit requirements. The parties hereto aver 
that they are familiar with § 18-8-301, et seq., C.R.S. (Bribery and Corrupt Influences), 
as amended, and § 18-8-401, et seq. , C.R.S. (Abuse of Public Office), as amended" the 
Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q), and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act 
(33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), as amended, and that no violation of such provisions are 
present. The Contractor warrants that it is in compliance with the residency 
requirements in §§ 8-17.5-101, et seq., C.R.S. Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, the Contractor expressly agrees to comply with the privacy and security 
requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 
(HIPAA), and 42 C.F.R. §§160-164. 

11.3. OSHA: The Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Occupational Safety 
and Health Act (OSHA) and shall review and comply with the County's safety 
regulations while on any County property. Failure to comply with any applicable 
federal, state or local law, rule, or regulation shall give the County the right to terminate 



this agreement for cause. 

11.4. Record Retention: The Contractor shall maintain records and documentation of the 
services provided under this Agreement, including fiscal records, and shall retain the 
records for a period of three (3) years from the date this Agreement is terminated. Said 
records and documents shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or 
audit by authorized Federal, State, or County persormel. 

11.5. Assignability: Neither this Agreement, nor any rights hereunder, in whole or in part, 
shall be assignable or otherwise transferable by the Contractor without the prior written 
consent of the County. 

11.6. Waiver: Waiver of strict performance or the breach of any provision of this Agreement 
shall not be deemed a waiver, nor shall it prejudice the waiving party's right to require 
strict performance of the same provision, or any other provision in the future, unless 
such waiver has rendered future performance commercially impossible. 

11.7. Force Majeure: Neither party shall be liable for any delay or failure to perform its 
obligations hereunder to the extent that such delay or failure is caused by a force or 
event beyond the control of such party including, without limitation, war, embargoes, 
strikes, governmental restrictions, riots, fires , floods, earthquakes, or other acts of God. 

11 .8. Notice: Any notices given under this Agreement are deemed to have been received and 
to be effective: 1) Three (3) days after the same shall have been mailed by certified 
mail, return receipt requested; 2) Immediately upon hand delivery; or 3) Immediately 
upon receipt of confirmation that an E-mail was received. For the purposes of this 
Agreement, any and all notices shall be addressed to the contacts listed below: 

Department: Adams County Sheriff s Office 
Contact: Gene Claps 
Address: 150 North 19th Avenue 
City, State, Zip: Brighton, Colorado 80601 
Phone: 303-655-3303 
E-mail: gclaps@adcogov.org 

Department: Adams County Purchasing 
Contact: Jermifer Tierney 
Address: 4430 South Adams County Parkway 
City, State, Zip: Brighton, Colorado 80601 
Phone: 720-523-6049 
E-mail: jtierey@adcogov.org 

Department: Adams County Attorney ' s Office 
Address: 4430 South Adams County Parkway 
City, State, Zip: Brighton, Colorado 80601 
Phone: 720.523.6116 

Contractor: Community Reach Center 
Contact: Abigail Tucker PsyD, LP 
Address: 8931 Huron Street 
City, State, Zip: Thornton, Colorado 80260 

mailto:jtierey@adcogov.org
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Phone: 303.853.3703 

E-mail: 

11.9. Integration of Understanding: This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the 
parties hereto and neither it, nor the rights and obligations hereunder, may be changed, 
modified, or waived except by an instrument in writing that is signed by the parties 
hereto. 

11.10. Severability: If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be unenforceable or 
invalid for any reason, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in effect, unless 
otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms contained herein. 

11.11. Authorization: Each party represents and warrants that it has the power and ability to 
enter into this Agreement, to grant the rights granted herein, and to perform the duties 
and obligations herein described. 

11.12. 	 Confidentiality: All documentation related to this Agreement will become the property 
of Adams County. All documentation maintained or kept by Adams County shall be 
subject to the Colorado Open Records Act, C.R.S. 24-72-201 et seq. ("CORA"). The 
County does not guarantee the confidentiality of any records. 

12. CHANGE ORDERS OR EXTENSIONS: 

12.1. 	 Change Orders: The County may, from time to time, require changes in the scope of 
the services of the Contractor to be performed herein including, but not limited to, 
additional instructions, additional work, and the omission of work previously ordered. 
The Contractor shall be compensated for all authorized changes in services, pursuant 
to the applicable provision in the Invitation to Bid, or, if no provision exists, pursuant 
to the terms of the Change Order. 

12.2. 	 Extensions: The County may, upon mutual written agreement by the parties, extend 
the time of completion of services to be performed by the Contractor. 

13. COMPLIANCE WITH c.R.S. § 8-17.5-101, ET. SEQ. AS AMENDED 5/13/08: Pursuant 
to Colorado Revised Statute (C.R.S.), § 8-17.5-10 1, et. seq., as amended May 13, 2008, the 
Contractor shall meet the following requirements prior to signing this Agreement (public 
contract for service) and for the duration thereof: 

13.1. 	 The Contractor shall certify participation in the E-Verify Program (the electronic 
employment verification program that is authorized in 8 U.S.C. § 1324a and jointly 
administered by the United States Department of Homeland Security and the Social 
Security Administration, or its successor program) or the Department Program (the 
employment verification program established by the Colorado Department of Labor 
and Employment pursuant to C.R.S. § 8-17.5-102(5)) on the attached certification. 

13.2. 	 The Contractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform 
work under this public contract for services. 



13.3. 	 The Contractor shall not enter into a contract with a subcontractor that fails to certify 
to the Contractor that the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with 
an illegal alien to perform work under this public contract for services. 

13.4. 	 At the time of signing this public contract for services, the Contractor has confirmed 
the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment to 
perform work under this public contract for services through participation in either the 
E-Verify Program or the Department Program. 

13.5. 	 The Contractor shall not use either the E-Verify Program or the Department Program 
procedures to undertake pre-employment screening ofjob applicants while this public 
contract for services is being performed. 

13 .6. If the Contractor obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under 
this public contract for services knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, 
the Contractor shall: notify the subcontractor and the County within three (3) days that 
the Contractor has actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing or contracting 
with an illegal alien; and terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if within 
three days of receiving the notice required pursuant to the previous paragraph, the 
subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien; except that 
the Contractor shall not terminate the contract with the subcontractor if during such 
three (3) days the subcontractor provides information to establish that the 
subcontractor has not knowingly employed or contracted with an illegal alien. 

13.7. 	 Contractor shall comply with any reasonable requests by the Department of Labor and 
Employment (the Department) made in the course of an investigation that the 
Department is undertaking pursuant to the authority established in C.R.S. § 8-17.5­
102(5). 

13 .8. If Contractor violates this Section, of this Agreement, the County may terminate this 
Agreement for breach of contract. If the Agreement is so terminated, the Contractor 
shall be liable for actual and consequential damages to the County. 

The remainder of this page is left blank intentionally. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused their names to be affixed hereto : 

Board of County Commissioners 

Chairperson () Date TJ 

Date 
) 

Printed Name Title 

Attest: 

Stan Martin, Clerk and Recorder 
Deputy Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 
Adams County Attorney's Office 

NOTARlZATION OF CONTRACTOR'S SIGNATURE: 

COUNTY OF AdrVnt 5 ) 

W() (f{( ;LoSTATE OF L- )SS. 


Signed and sworn to before me tbis Jtllday of--L.../~=~/;....·'l;....'f/L______, 2016,
ha ~_

I 

? l'c,((/ 7) () t1 (t .t VICKI ESPOSITOby--~~---~---------- NOTARY PUBUC 

STATE OF COLORADO 


NOTARY 10 20064045359 

MVCOMMISSION EXPIRES NOVEMBEfl3. 2018 


Notary Public 

My commission expires on: ___1l tJ 3· '--____________1--,'--_......!~O/~ 

:::111 ( ~Il< l -"llIlll1lll1t) R~.I"h 



CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE 

Pursuant to Colorado Revised Statute, § 8-17 .5-101, et.seq., as amended 5113 /08, as a 
prerequisite to entering into a contract for services with Adams County, Colorado, the 
undersigned Contractor hereby certifies that at the time of this certification, Contractor does not 
knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien who will perform work under the attached 
contract for services and that the Contractor will participate in the E-Verify Program or 
Department program, as those terms are defined in C.R.S. § 8-17.5-101 , et. seq. in order to 
confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment to 
perform work under the attached contract for services. 

CONTRACTOR: 

Date 

Name (Print or Type) 

CEo 
Title 

Note: Registration for the E-Verify Program can be completed at: https://wvv'w.vis­
dhs.com\employerregistration. It is recommended that employers review the sample 
"memorandum of understanding" available at the website prior to registering 

'11\' , ~, I. IlII11UUIIII\ I{c;tch 
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A Mandatory Pre-Proposal Conference and Tour to familiarize bidders with the scope of 
work and answer questions will be held on Tuesday, December 1, 2015 at 10:00 a.m. at the 
Adams County Detention Facility located at 150 North 19th Avenue, Brighton, Colorado, 80601. 
Proposers are requested to RSVP to Jennifer Tierney at jtiemey@adcogov.org by Monday, 
November 23, 2015 with number of persons attending. A driver's license or other picture 
identification is required upon your arrival at the detention center. 

Final questions are due by December 7, 2015 at 3:00 p.m. Questions must be emailed to 
jtierney(a;co.adams.co.us. Questions shall be clearly marked with the RFP title and number. 

Sealed proposals for this requirement will be received at the office of the Purchasing Agent, 
Adams County Administration Building, 450 South 4th Avenue, Second Floor, Brighton, 
Colorado, 80601, up to 3:00 P.M., Tuesday, December 22, 2010. 

The Request for Proposal can be retrieved from the Rocky Mountain Online Bid System website 

at: 

http://www.govbids.com/scripts/col /public/homel .asp?utm medium+referral&utm source=AD 

A84CO&utm campaign+web site. 


Issuance of this invitation does not commit Adams County to award any contract or to procure or 
contract for any equipment, materials or services. 

SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS 

Six (6) copies of the proposal are required. If brochures or other supportive documents are 
requested, then it is required that 6 sets be submitted with your proposal. 

All proposals must be signed. 

Whenever addenda's are required, they must be acknowledged in the proposal. 

Proposals may be withdrawn after the date and hour set for closing. Failure to enter contract or 
honor the purchase order will be cause for removal of proposers name from the Vendor's List for 
a period of twelve months from the date of this opening. 

If a formal contract is required, the Proposer agrees and understands a Notice of Award does not 
constitute a contract or otherwise create a property interest of any nature until an Agreement is 
signed by the awardee and the Board of County Commissioners. 

The County assumes no responsibility for late deliveries of mail on behalf of the United States 
Post Office. 

The County assumes no responsibility for failure of any telephone equipment, either within its 
facilities or from outside causes. The County assumes no responsibility for proposals being 
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either opened early or improperly routed if the envelope is not clearly marked on the outside 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE INMATE MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. 

In the event of a situation severe enough to cause the Adams County Board of Commissioners to 
close Adams County Offices for any reason, the Purchasing Agent has the prerogative of 
rescheduling the bid opening time and date. No proposer will be considered above all other 
proposers by having met the opening time and date requirements to the exclusion of those who 
were unable to present their proposal due to a situation severe enough to cause the Commissioner 
to close the Adams County Offices. 

Proposals must be furnished exclusive of taxes. 

No award will be made to any person, finn or corporation that is in arrears upon any obligation 
to the County. 

If submitting a joint venture proposal involving a partnership arrangement, articles of partnership 
stating each partner's responsibilities shall be furnished and submitted with the proposal. 
Proposer warrants the joint venture/partnership is authorized to conduct business within the State 
of Colorado. 

If proposer is a corporation, proposer warrants the corporation is in good standing with the 
Colorado Secretary of State and authorized to conduct business within the State of Colorado. 

The County reserves the right to waive any irregularities or infonnalities, and the right to accept 
or reject any and all proposals including, but not limited to, any proposal which does not meet 
bonding requirements, or proposals which do not furnish the quality, or offer the availability of 
materials, equipment or services as required by the specifications, description or scope of 
services, or proposals from proposers who lack experience or financial responsibility, or 
proposals which are not made to fonn. The County reserves the right not to award contracts to 
the lowest and most responsive proposer, and may require new proposals. 

The County reserves the right to reject proposals of proposers who lack experience, financial 
responsibility or whose proposals are not to form. 

The Board of County Commissioners may rescind the award of any proposal within one week 
thereof or at its next regularly scheduled meeting; whichever is later, when the public interest 
will be served thereby. 

Only sealed proposals received by the Purchasing Department will be accepted; proposals 
submitted by telephone, telegram, facsimile machines are not acceptable. 

Adams County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Questions about this Request for Proposal shall be referred to Jennifer Tierney, Adams County 
Purchasing Agent, who may be reached by telephoning (303) 654-6049 or by email at 
jtierney(a;co.adams.co.us. 

IV 
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NOTICE TO VENDORS 

The Adams County Board of Commissioners by and through its Purchasing agent is accepting 
proposals for a comprehensive health care delivery system at the Adams County Detention 
Facility in Brighton, Colorado. This facility houses predominately adult male and female 
inmates. A small number of direct file juveniles can be housed in the Adams County Jail as well. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The Adams County Detention Facility is located in Brighton, Colorado, approximately twenty­
five (25) miles northeast of downtown Denver. Brighton, the County Seat, is one of ten (10) 
municipalities, all or part of which are located in Adams County and are part of the Denver 
metro area. 

The Adams County Detention Facility was opened in 1985 with a design capacity of 485 beds. 
Since that time double bunking in the original podular remote housing units and the addition of a 
three-story dormitory style , direct supervision addition has increased the capacity to 1726. The 
A verage Daily Population (ADP) for 2013 was 1,052. Approximately 14% of the population at 
any given time is female . The ADP for 2014 was 998. Bookings for 2013 totaled 15,792. 
Bookings for 2014 totaled 16,310. A Work Release program currently accounts for 
approximately 68 inmates of the current population. Medical care for Work Release inmates is 
generally limited to some medication distribution at night and on weekends and emergency care 
while the inmates are on site. 

MEDICAL UNIT ACCOMODATIONS 

The Medical Unit contains 15 inmate cells with sink and toilet (sized for double occupancy). 
Two cells with a shared anti-room are equipped as reverse air flow units. The remaining space is 
allocated as follows: 

Health Services Administrator office 
Director of NursinglPhysician Office 
Administrative Assistant office 
Nursing workstation with adjoining current records and separate pharmacy 
rooms 

1 Dental room with two chairs and x-ray 
4 Exam rooms 
2 Officer stations 
1 Records storage room 
3 Mental health counseling offices (Separate vendor from this RFP) 
1 Locked inmate waiting room 
1 Equipment storage room (also used as staff break room) 
2 Inmate bathing facilities (one with tub/one with shower) 
1 Inmate visiting room 
1 Inmate quiet room. 
2 Staff toilets 



1 Clean linen room 
2 Supply rooms 

Biohazard room 

MEDICAL CO-PAY SYSTEM 

The Adams County Detention Facility subscribes to an inmate co-pay system. Currently a $3.00 
access/nurse sick call , $5.00 Physician Visit, $5.00 Dentist Visit, $3.00 Reading Glasses, and a 
$3.00 (per) prescription fee are charged to control abuse of the medical unit. 
There are no charges for intake screening and history, physicals, mental health services or initial 
dental screens. Proceeds of the co-pay system are returned to the Adams County General Fund. 

STATISTICAL DATA 

The following is an overview of statistical data for primary medical services for 2013 , and 2014. 
This data is provided for informational purposes only and in no way is intended to limit, project, 
or predict the number of patient encounters to be provided by the vendor during the period of the 
contract. These statistics may, in some cases, not match other monthly statistics provided 
directly. For example, 911 transports resulting in hospital admission will be reflected in monthly 
statistics as hospital days, not as unscheduled medical runs to hospitals. 

Primary Medical Services 2013 2014 

Contractor Services 

PhysiCians 

Nurse Practitioner 

Dentist 

Psychiatrist 

Social Worker 

Nurse Sick Call 

Off Site Consults 

Emergency Room Transports 

Ambulance 

Squad Car 

Flight for Life 

Physicals 

14 day 

Trustee 

Annual 

Radiology/ X-Ray 

Chest 

Mise. 

Off Site 

laboratory Services 

2296 

6315 

707 

1839 

8623 

9562 

240 

1976 

4862 

860 

1841 

11617 

12775 

407 

56 

76 

0 

45 

68 

0 

3422 

741 

51 

2117 

641 

39 

234 

230 

46 

3293 

141 

366 

59 

4345 
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Treatment 

Intake Screenings 

Inmate Deaths 

Infirmary Admissions 

Medical 

Mental Health 

Unscheduled Medical Unit Visits 

Chronic Care 

Seizure 

Hypertension 

Pulmonary 

Diabetes 

Other 

Special Diets 

Cardiac 

Diabetic 

Renal 

Hypertension 

PPD 

Planted 

Read 

Positive 

Verified 

Hx of Positive 

Conversion to 
Positive 

Active TB 

Refused PPD 

Hospital Statistics 

Admissions 

Total Days 

Outpatient Services 

One Day Surgeries 

Optometry 

Dialysis 

Indication for ER Transport 

ETOH/Opiate 
Withdrawal 

10787 

14881 

0 

438 
470 

1712 

500 
947 
953 
320 

413 

149 

584 
11 
65 

3933 
3092 
84 
206 
127 
18 

0 
2 

59 
191 

21 

9 

61 

21 

11055 

15312 

0 

479 
744 

1592 

286 
736 
578 
351 
369 

141 

360 
1 
Statistics not kept 

for this specific diet 

2296 
1986 
60 
37 
112 
10 

0 
14 

31 
148 

37 
(this is included in 

one day surgeries) 

0 

4 
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Abdominal 
Pain(including GI 
issues, Gallbladder, 
Urinary Complaints, 
Appendicitis) 

Injuries (including: 

Falls, a Ite rcatio ns, 

incidents prior to 

intake) 


Chest Pain 


Other (including: 

OB, Hernia, 

infections, DKA, 

Suicide Attempts, 

Dialysis, Seizures) 


Pharmacy Statistics 

Monthly average of 
Prescription 
Medications 

Monthly Average of 
Psychotropic 
Medications 

Monthly Average of 
TB medications 

Monthly Average of 
HIV medications 

14 14 

10 15 

22 19 
65 57 

735 906 

285 272 

1 1 

8 8 

Reliability of Information: The information in this RFP has been taken from data available and is 
believed to be reasonably accurate. Proposers are requested to personally verify data wherever 
possible and to ask for any other information needed for the preparation of their responses to the 
RFP. 

ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION 

SCOPE OF CONTRACT 

Contractor shall be the coordinator of the mental health care delivery system at the Adams 
County Detention Facility. Contractor shall be responsible for all Mental Health care for all 
inmates (except Work Release inmates who shall, when in the Facility, receive only minimum 
medicine distribution and emergency care from the Contractor) at the Adams County Detention 
Facility. 
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The responsibility of the Contractor for the Mental Health care of an inmate commences with the 
commitment of the inmate to the custody of the Adams County Detention Facility and ends with 
the release of the inmate. 

Contractors will include in proposals agreement to work directly with the current Medical 
Contractor who is contracted with Adams County to provide all Quality health care services for 
inmates in custody and control of the Adams County Detention Facility 'The Contractor will be 
responsible for shared management of pharmaceuticals for the jail. And will include agreement 
that managing the Pharmacy Cap is a shared responsibility and agreement to exchange 
prescription medication information with the contracted vendor for purpose of collaborative 
agreement to Pharmacy Cap. Contractors will also include in proposals plans to electronically 
document mental health care and services and agreement to share information with the 
contracted vendor for purposes of shared responsibility to manage risk of inmates who are either 
housed in Infirmary and/or receiving both medical and behavioral health services. 

MENTAL HEALTH CARE 

Contractor will continue to ensure that the mental health program at the Adams 
County Detention Facility in Brighton Colorado is in compliance with local, state, 
and national standards including National Commission on Correctional Health 
Care (NCCHC). Contractor will provide an average of 120 hours per week of direct 
clinical care (i.e. direct clinical services provided by any clinician, clinical case 
manager, Jail Supervisor, or Program Manager) as well as an additional average of 
20 hours per week of on-site psychiatric services (to be provided by any credential 
psychiatrist or the Contractor's Medical Director). Under the supervision of 
Contractor's medical director and Contractor's Adult Forensics Program Manager 
qualified mental health professionals will continue to provide mental health services. 
Inmate services include the following: 

Primary Duties and Services: 
Referrals/Triage: 

• 	 Inmates will be screened for mental health problems at the time of booking by a 
Nurse and/or Facility Deputy using the Medical Contractor's chosen screening 
and will be referred as a client, if appropriate, at that time. The referral will be 
completed either by providing the chosen screening or referral form to the 
Contractor via a designated and confidential procedure and/or by directly 
contacting the Contractor when on site and using the Contractor Crisis Line 
when emergent and Contractor is not onsite. 

• 	 Inmates may be referred by Medical Contractor or Facility personnel at any 
other time during their incarceration. 

• 	 Contractor will review and triage referrals at minimum each day and will 
respond to them in accordance with their clinical judgment as well as in 
accordance with NCCHC standards. 
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Assessment & Treatment Planning 

• 	 Following a referral, the inmate will receive a mental health evaluation within 
fourteen (14) calendar days unless otherwise clinically indicated in which the 
process by which the designated mental health evaluation is completed will be 
expedited. 

• 	 Contractor will use the Contractor's designated mental health evaluation which 
will be conducted by a qualified mental health professional and will include a 
structured interview remain in accordance with NCCHC standards. 

• 	 The mental health professional will establish individual special needs treatment 
plans for mental health special needs inmates that will include: 

o 	 The care to be provided. 
o 	 The roles of the members of the treatment team. 
o 	 Discharge planning as needed. 

Direct Care Services 
• 	 Psychiatric care including Medical Evaluations as referred by clinical team and 

Medication management for on-going clients in the jail (See Attachment II for full 
description of Psychiatric Coverage). 

• 	 Mental Health Crisis Coverage (see Attachment III for full description) 
• 	 Case Management including discharge planning 
• 	 Individual counseling sessions, as needed, and primarily for the purpose of 

clinical stabilization. 
• 	 Group counseling sessions including, but not limited to: 

o 	 Coping skills 
o 	 Integrated Dual Diagnosis treatment (to address substance abuse) 

Staff Coverage (See Attachment I Job Descriptions) 
• 	 Direct care hours listed below indicates direct & onsite services. Staff coverage 

may also include additional onsite and offsite work hours to include direct care 
service, team meetings, supervision, training, and other work-related duties. 

• 	 An average of twenty (20) hours per week of on-site psychiatrist service which 
can be supplemented or replaced with telepsychiatry for up to 10 of the contracted 
20 hours per week. In addition, assigned psychiatrist will remain on call by 
telephone only an additional 20 hours a week (during normal business hours) to 
respond to acute crisis needs. Contractor also agrees to provide 24 hour, 7 day 
per week on-call coverage for acute crisis int~rvention. 

• 	 An average of one hundred and twenty (120) hours per week to be provided over 
the course of seven days (each day of the week) of on-site mental health care 
services as provided by either clinicians, case managers, site supervisors, or 
managers to include three shifts per week that extend until 2100 hours (9: OOpm) 
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in addition the coverage will include; 
o 	 Two (2) masters level mental health counselors, with licensure in 

substance abuse treatment and/or mental health treatment; 
o 	 One (1) masters level clinical case manager/discharge planner with 

licensure in substance abuse treatment and/or mental health treatment 
o 	 One (1) master's level Program Supervisor providing both direct clinical 

care, supervision of Contractor staff, education, training, and program 
development with licensure in substance abuse treatment and/or mental 
health treatment. 

o 	 One (1) master's level Program Manager providing oversight, supervision, 
direct care, and program development both on-site and off site with 
licensure in substance abuse treatment and/or mental health treatment. 

Other mental programs: 

• 	 Contractor shall collaborate with and integrate inmate clients into other mental 
health programs that may be available and deemed appropriate for a particular 
client ' s treatment. 

Supplemental but Integral Services Include: 
Documentation 

Contractor will document all services either via electronic documentation system or via 
scanning hard copy records into Medical Contractor's confidential and secure electronic 
documentation system. Contractor will then print any necessary documentation and 
place in on-site medical chart in compliance with NCCHC. 

Clerical Staff 

Contractor will provide any and all on and off-site clerical staff to maintain this 
contract. 

Facility Approvals 

Facility administration may request the replacement of any contractor personnel believed 
unable to carry out the responsibilities of the contract. Facility will approve all 
appointments to the positions listed in Attachment 1. 

Personnel File Maintenance 

Personnel files of contract employees assigned to the Facility will be maintained at 
Contractor Human Resource office and made available to Medical Contractor or 
Facility Administrator or designee. A personnel file (may be abbreviated) of contract 
employees assigned to Facility with contents that meet NCCHC standards will be 
maintained at the Facility. 
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Pharmaceutical Services 

Contractor will utilize Medical Contractor pharmaceutical service(s) for all 
pharmaceutical service needs. NCCHC standards and consistent use of one 
pharmaceutical service within the Facility will increase quality and decrease oversight 
with regard to medication orders, etc. 

Training 

Contractor acknowledges the need for trallllllg of new staff and is committed to 
providing agency and site-specific instruction to each employee. In addition to the on­
going education requirements of Contractor full time Jail Therapy Program staff 
employees will receive Facility training on topics such as radio procedures, security 
topics, etc as communicated and provided by Facility and/or Contractor. The total 
classroom time for these required subjects is approximately ten (10) hours. Contractor 
shall ensure an additional thirty (30) hours of job related training (which can include 
supervision, CEU training, etc.) to employees annually in accordance with accreditation 
standards. 

Court Subpoenas 

Contractor acknowledges that personnel may from time to time be subpoenaed to testify 
and accepts responsibility in responding and managing these court requests when they 
pertain to mental health services. 

Record OwnershiplRelease of Records 

Contractor understands existing health records prepared by Contractor during the 
contract will become property of Facility. Inactive records will be retained as required 
by applicable laws and regulations and identified and may be re-activated if an inmate 
returns to the system. The County will have access to all health records created. 

Contractor shall comply with all applicable requirements of the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPP A) and Colorado Open Records Laws 
relating to Contractors' responsibilities under this agreement. Duplication of records is 
the responsibility of Contractor and the actual release will be the responsibility of the 
Facility. Fees collected by the Facility for copies will be forwarded to the Contractor. 

The creation, maintenance, and general keeping of all medical records in the jail 
(including mental health) shall remain the responsibility of the contracted medical 
Contractor within the Facility. Contractor will file records accordingly and maintain 
internal records in accordance with Facility expectations. 

Legal Actions and Requests 

Inmate grievances concerning mental health care shall be answered by Contractor staff 
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within three days and forwarded to the Medical Contractor Health Services 
Administrator for record keeping purposes. Completed responses will be returned to the 
inmate through the Facility Administrative Commander or designee. 

Contractor understands that in the course of mental health care inmate grievances may 
result in potential litigation and will provide necessary documentation within one 
business day. 

Personnel Backgrounds and Security 

Clearance 
Contractor employees who have direct care responsibilities at the Facility will undergo 
and successfully complete a background clearance and integrity interview as conducted 
by Facility . 

Refusal of Clearance 
Contractor will be informed immediately if any prospective contract employee IS 

refused clearance for any reason. 

Withdrawal of Clearance 
The Facility may withdraw the security clearance of any Contractor personnel at any 
time. 

Terminated Employees 
When an employee resigns or is terminated by Contractor, the Facility, will be notified 
immediately. Contractor is responsible to retrieve the employee' s ID badge and access 
card on their last day or within 24 hours. 

Sherifrs Right of Inspection 
Staff personal items will be stored security in their offices. The Facility will have the 
right of inspection of all personal effects and contents any time of the day or night. 

Dangerous Instruments 
Contractor employees will understand they are never to bring in their own instruments if 
they are sharp, edged, or bladed, such as scissors and knives. 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
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Job Descriptions 

Expectations of Assigned Staff 

Expectations for Contracted Clinical Coverage of an average of 120 hours per week of 
direct clinical care: The expectation is that all specified duties (e.g. Triaging Referrals, Mental 
Health Evaluations, etc.) can be completed with 120 hours per week of direct, non-psychiatric, 
care. This will also allow for each staff member to attend Contractor expected supervisions, 
trainings, team meetings, utilize Paid Time Off, as well as to allow for the rare event that a 
Contractor staff could not be in attendance anyone day of the week due to unforeseen and 
unusual circumstances. This average of 120 hours per week will be calculated over a one month 
span of time while still maintaining the required NCCHC and required services despite the hours 
of service provided. 

Expectations for Contracted Psychiatric Coverage of an additional average of 20 hours per 
week: The expectation is that in addition to the 120 hours per week of direct clinical care 
Contractor will also provide an average of 20 hours per week of on-site psychiatric services. 
This average of 20 hours per week will be calculated over a one month span of time while still 
maintaining the required NCCHC and required services despite the hours of service provided. 

Expectations for Jail Supervisor 
• 	 Job Duties listed in Contractor Human Resources file 
• 	 Daily Expectations 


~ Triage, Supervise, & Document accordingly 

~ Triage Mental Health Evaluations, Intake/Booking, Crisis 

~ Assist in completion of paperwork 


• 	 Weekly Expectations 
o 	 1-1 Supervision with clinicians and clinical case manager 
o 	 Team Meetings 
o 	 Attend Facility's' Classification Review Board and Administrative Review Board 

Meetings 
o 	 Meet with Program Manager 
o 	 Coordinate with psychiatrist 
o 	 Coordinate with Medical Contractor manager & Facility Administrative 

Commander 
o 	 Meet with Program Manager 
o 	 Coordinate with psychiatrist 
o 	 Coordinate with Contractor manager & Facility support staff manager 

• 	 Monthly Expectations 

~ Accreditation Statistics 

~ Collect & Record Actuarial data from team 


Expectations for Jail Psychiatrist(s) 
• 	 Job Duties listed in Contractor Human Resources file 
• 	 Daily Expectations 

~ ReviewlReceive, Treat, & Document accordingly 
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~ IP/Infinnary Rounds, Evaluations for General Populations (based on referrals) 
~ Complete Paperwork 

• 	 Weekly Expectations 

~ Consult with Jail Supervisor 


• 	 Monthly Expectations 

~ Collect & Report Monthly Statistics to Jail Supervisor 


Expectations for Jail Clinicians 
• 	 Job Duties listed in Contractor Human Resources file 
• 	 Daily Expectations 


~ Triage, Treat, and Document accordingly 

~ IP/Infinnary Rounds, Suicide Rounds, Crisis 

~ Mental Health Evaluations (based on referrals) 

~ Triage and address Kites 

~ Complete Paperwork 


• 	 Weekly Expectations 
o 	 Meeting individually with Juveniles & Women who are pregnant, 
o 	 Groups 

o 	 Supervision 
o 	 Team Meeting 

• 	 Monthly Expectations 

~ Collect & Report Monthly Statistics to Jail Supervisor 


Expectations for Clinical Case manager(s) 
• 	 Job Duties listed in Contractor Human Resources file 
• 	 Daily Expectations 


~ Triage, Treat, & Document accordingly 

~ Triage and Treat Kites, Crisis, Groups, Discharge Planning 

~ Complete Paperwork 


• 	 Weekly Expectations 

~ Complete any discharge planning or treatment planning 

~ 1-1 Supervision 

~ Team Meeting 


• 	 Monthly Expectations 

~ Collect & Report Monthly Statistics to Jail Supervisor 


Specific Services 

Inpatient Rounds (Infirmary): 

Clinical 
Each day, the clinician will make rounds to check on all mental health clients housed in the 
medical unit (also known as Mental Health Observation). Clinicians should check for symptom 
stability, safety and med compliance prior to releasing him/her to the general population. If the 
clinician feels that the client is still unsafe or unstable, the client should remain within the 
"inpatient" unit. All observations made by clinicians should be documented in the client's 
charts. 
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Psychiatric 
Each day the psychiatrist is scheduled in the jail psychiatrist will evaluate (Medical Evaluation) 
any client who has been housed in the medical unit for psychiatric reasons and who has not 
previously been seen by the psychiatrist. Psychiatrist will also monitor the medication 
management of clients in the medical unit. 

Suicide Rounds: 
Clinical 
Anyone who reports suicidal ideation or intent should be evaluated immediately. Such 
information should be shared with jail staff. If client's suicidal ideation is valid, he/she should 
be placed on one of the below watches/observations. Please refer to NCCHC policy/procedures. 
There are different levels of observation for suicidal clients: 

1. Suicide Watch - first level of monitoring. It is used for clients who are not actively suicidal, 
but may have expressed suicidal ideation or have recent/prior history of suicidal behavior. Such 
clients receive supervision from jail staff at a minimum of every 15 minutes. They have a 
quilted wrap and blanket. 

2. Suicide Observation - second level of monitoring. The jail supervision is staggered at 
intervals of 30 minutes or less. Clients are provided with a paper suit and quilted blanket. 

3. Mental Health Observations - can be used as a lower level of observation designed to monitor 
the stability and safety of a client. 

For all clients who have been on Suicide Watch or Suicide Observation, the following protocol 
MUST be used when following up: 

• Initial follow up within 72 hours of being released from watch/observation 
• Weekly follow up sessions to determine safety and stability for one month 
• Every other week follow up as needed 
• Monthly follow up as needed 

Psychiatric 
Any client placed on suicide watch must be evaluated by the psychiatrist within on week of their 
placement on suicide watch. 

Juveniles: 

Juveniles are housed in a special pod within the jail. They are to be assessed for mental health 
needs weekly. While individual contacts are ideal groups check-ins may be used with there are 
no obvious mental health issues and the goal is to maintain wellness. Contractor will be notified 
by Medical Contractor when juveniles have entered Facility. 

Pregnant Women: 
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Any women who are pregnant in the jail must be seen within one week of their arrival by either a 
clinician or case manager to monitor any special needs. Follow-up care will be as needed. 

Mental Health Referrals and Kites (Inmate Requests): 

Referrals and kites need to be triaged within 24 hours. Accordingly, they should be triaged 
daily. Clinicians are expected to respond to two different forms of referrals . Kites and Mental 
Health Referrals are to be triaged by the Jail Supervisor, Clinical Case Manager, or a Clinician 
for urgent issues that need immediate attention and the remainder will be logged. All Kites and 
Referrals must be responded to in person (unless the person has been released from jail in the 
timeframe or unless the Kite or Referral can be managed without face to face response) by 
Contractor staff within 72 hours. 

Mental Health Evaluations: 

Mental health evaluations must be completed on all mental health referrals and some kites within 
two weeks of receipt. Some kites may be for case management services and therefore, would not 
need an evaluation. For all clients that a clinician initially sees, a mental health evaluation must 
be completed. When evaluating a client, it is important to pay attention to symptoms, stability, 
safety, needs and so on. Such evaluations are also used as a screenings for some of the 
following, as well as other services to be determined: 

• 	 Medication - refer to doctor if appropriate. A Mental Health Evaluation and completed 
form must be completed prior to a psychiatrist seeing a client. 

• 	 Groups (see group section) 
• 	 General mental health concerns - refer to groups, follow on a more regular basis ... 
• 	 Case Management needs - referral for discharge planning, benefit acquisition, linkage ... 

Psychiatric Care: See Attachment I for description 

Groups: 
Clinicians are required to provide a minimum of one group each week. Clinicians and Jail 
Supervisor will create & coordinate a group schedule and roster with facility staff. Groups will 
follow Evidenced Based Practices including but not limited to: 

Integrated Dual Diagnosis Treatment (IDDT) 
Psychiatric Rehabilitation 
Wellness Recovery Action Planning 

Case Managers will also provide a minimum of one psychosocial group, including but not 
limited to: 

• 	 Illness Management Recovery (i.e., sleep hygiene, symptom management, 
coping skills) 

• 	 Psychiatric Rehabilitation 

Discharge planning: 

Discharge planning is necessary for all clients using individual mental health and psychiatric 
services, as well as for those who kite about such problems. It is important to always ask when 
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an inmate is leaving and what needs they might have. It is important to also realize that many 
clients do not participate in Discharge Planning and/or are released or bonded out of the facility 
without the case manager's awareness/knowledge. However, ideally discharge planning may 
include, but is not limited to: 
• 	 Making appointments (psychiatric and individual therapeutic services) at Contractor for 

open consumers. 
• 	 Attempting to coordinate care with other Contractors if client is not open to Contractor or 

would like to seek services in another area 
• 	 Linkage for additional services (social security, obtaining proper identification, substance 

abuse treatment facilities, and so on). 

Facility Classification Review Board (CRB) and Administrative Review Board (ARB) 

On a weekly and as needed-basis, jail staff review segregated inmates status at the jail. Input 
from a mental health professionals, case managers and jail staff is necessary. CRB meets weekly 
and it is expected that Contractor is represented at this meeting. This meeting is held to discuss 
and collaborate about segregated inmates. ARB is held to discuss continuous problematic 
behavior of specific inmates. The ARB has increased authority to restrict and control living 
conditions of an inmate. ARB meets as needed and it is expected that Contractor is represented 
at this meeting as well. 

When to Open Clients to Contractor: 

It may be difficult to determine if clients need to be open to Contractor or not. It will be 
important to decide what is clinically appropriate and what services you will provide. Clients 
who plan to continue therapy with Contractor upon release should be opened to Contractor. 
Otherwise client status with Contractor will be reviewed on case by case basis. Regardless of a 
client's status with Contractor jail clients will receive the same quality of care while at Facility. 

Statistics: 

The jail requires that statIstlcs be gathered on a monthly basis for accreditation purposes. 
Clinicians and case managers are responsible for keeping stats of the individuals they provided 
services for and to report that data to the Jail Supervisor monthly who then reports to the Medical 
Contractor and Facility Administrative Commander. Occasionally, "snapshots" are required 
of mental health services. On specified date, clinicians will be asked to provide numbers of 
clients using mental health services and/or inmates with Axis I diagnoses. This is a collaborative 
process designed to demonstrate the mental health needs of the jail on any given day. 

Training 

Contractor will offer a minimum of quarterly trainings for Facility staff regarding mental health 
issues either in Platoon Briefings or via another specified event. 
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Documentation: For all individuals seen by Contractor Contractors, the following 
documentation is mandatory and will be conducted via Contractor's electronic documentation 
system although all documents are Contractor approved forms: 

• 	 Mental Health Evaluation: Complete and then print a hard copy, sign, and place in the 
inmate chart/hardcopy chart at the jail. 

o 	 Timeline: 
• 	 Service within 14 days of admission if referred for services 
• 	 Note completed at end of business day upon completion of service 

• 	 Progress Notes: Complete and then print a hard copy, sign, and place in the inmate 
chart/hardcopy chart at the jail. 

o 	 Timeline: 
• 	 Service completed dependent on type (i .e. infirmary checks are daily) 
• 	 Note completed at end of business day upon completion of service 

• 	 Psychiatric Medication Evaluations: Complete and then print a hard copy, sign, and place 
in the inmate chart/hardcopy chart at the jail. 

o 	 Timeline: 
• 	 Service completed within 14 days of referral 
• 	 Note completed at end of business day upon completion of service 

• 	 Psychiatric Medication Management Notes: Complete and then print a hard copy, sign, 
and place in the inmate chart/hardcopy chart at the jail. 

o 	 Timeline: 
• 	 Service completed dependent upon doctor's orders 
• 	 Note completed at end of business day upon completion of service 

• 	 Group Notes: Complete and then print a hard copy, sign, and place in the inmate 
chart/hardcopy chart at the jail. 

o 	 Timeline: 
• 	 Service completed dependent on referral from evaluation 
• 	 Note completed at end of business day upon completion of service 

• 	 Disclosure Forms: must be electronically signed for each client Contractor staff are in 
contact with which will appear as a secondary document to all Mental Health Evaluations 
and must be verbally read to client in language they can understand. Upon their verbal 
agreement, Contractor staff will electronically document their agreement and offer to 
provide a hard copy of the Disclosure statement into the client's personal property upon 
their request. 
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Attachment II: Integration of Psychiatric Care & Coverage 

In addition to Infirmary Rounds and Suicide Rounds Contractor psychiatrist will be responsible 
to provide medical evaluations on referred clients and medication monitoring for clients 
prescribed medication. 

Prescriptions: 
Continuing Prescriptions: The following medications which have been ordered by an outside 
Contractor including Inmates' medical doctor, emergency room consultant, outside psychiatrist, 
etc. may be approved for inmates when the following conditions exist: 

1. 	 Medications are on Medical Contractor's formulary 
2. Medications have been confirmed by outside source 

New irunates admitted to FACILITY who are on verified psychiatric medication should be 
continued on the current medication(s) until seen by the psychiatrist or other staff physician for 
medication renewal (within 14 days of admission to facility/FACILITY) by Medical 
Contractor nursing staff. Notification should immediately be sent to mental health staff so that 
inmate can be scheduled with psychiatrist within 14 days. In the event that there are no available 
appointment times with Contractor psychiatrist Medical Contractor shall make their own 
medical Contractors available for this service in order to stay in compliance with NCCHC 
requirements . 

For clients discharging from jail, prescriptions can be written or either 30 days or 3 days. 
• 	 30 day prescriptions can be written for clients who are open to Contractor or those who 

have psychiatric/mental health services planned upon release. It is important that such 
individuals have appointments made and are psychiatrically stable upon release. They 
should be working closely with case management to ensure continuity of care. 

• 	 3 day prescriptions can be written for individuals who do not have services planned upon 
release and/or are not open consumers of Contractor. 

Formulary: As documented by Medical Contractor. 

Documentation: In addition to completing psychiatric medical evaluations and 
medication management notation psychiatrist will complete additional, as needed, Contractor 
paperwork including but not limited to Non-Formulary Request Forms, Suicide Watch Discharge 
Forms, etc. Psychiatrists will follow a "SOAP-E" note format. 

Psychiatric Crisis Situations: include but are not limited to the following. A crisis situation not 
on this list should be collaboratively managed with required contact to a Contractor Manager. 

o 	 Irunate becomes substantially dangerous to self or others and on-site procedures 
(i.e. Suicide Watch, PRN medications, CRB review, etc.) have been exhausted 
and continue to be in effective. 

o 	 Irunate is housed in jail on psychotropic medications and either reports or appears 
to be either intoxicated or withdrawing from illegal substances and/or alcohol 

o 	 Irunate reports dangerous side effects to prescribed psychotropic medication 

Contractor Psychiatric Procedures : 
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o 	 During scheduled on-site hours: all Psychiatric Crisis Situations to be managed by 
on-site psychiatrist. 

o 	 During unscheduled off-business hours (all other times) contact will be Crisis: 
On-call clinician will consult with on-call psychiatrist. 
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Attachment III: Integration of Mental Health Crisis Management 

Contracted Service with Contractor for services at FACILITY: The availability of a 
mental health professional who by Colorado statute is able to place M-l holds, 24 hours 
per day, 7 days per week with a response time of no greater than three (3) hours. 

o 	 NOTE: Availability of mental health professional crisis care does not 
designate the person in crisis as an open consumer with Contractor 

o 	 Emergency Services Program of Contractor will be available on 
weekends, holidays, and afterhours - otherwise crises should be managed 
(including institution of involuntary certification) by on-site Contractor 
J ail Clinicians. Facility staff will be provided with Contractor 
Emergency Services contact information. 

o 	 In the event that the afterhours crisis service is needed Contractor 
Emergency Services clinicians will be allowed functional access into the 
facility in order to conduct the necessary face-to-face consult 

o 	 Facility will provide transportation for any person seen by afterhours 
Contractor Emergency Services if transportation is necessary. 

o 	 Contractor will follow standard protocol to address the crisis but will not 
be responsible for placing a person in crisis that is a jail client into a 
psychiatric facility and will default to the allocated 2710 facility 
Contractor for that consumer/jail client. 

Crisis Situations: include but are not limited to the following. A crisis situation not on this list 
should be collaboratively managed with required contact to a Contractor Manager. 

o 	 Inmate scheduled to be released/bonded while on Suicide Watch* 
o 	 Inmate scheduled to be released/bonded and chart has been flagged* by Mental 

Health or by Medical Contractor staff 
o 	 Inmate becomes substantially dangerous to self or others and on-site procedures 

(i.e. Suicide Watch, PRN medications, CRB review, etc.) have been exhausted 
and continue to be in effective. 

*Suicide Watch is a specific level of observation in which the inmate is considered to be 
at high risk of harming self or others (i.e. presenting with SI and a plan, recent suicide 
attempt, recently charged with murder, transferred from state hospital on M-l hold, etc.). 
This is not to be confused with other levels of observation including Suicide Observation 
or Mental Health Observation. 
*Flagged: Medical Chart will have a fluorescent cover to identify and booking will be 
notified. This indicates that while inmate may not need Suicide Watch while 
incarcerated, mental health or medical staff has identified risks (e.g. risk of harm to self 
or others) that may become more prominent upon release or in another setting. 

Procedures for Contractor employees 
• 	 Contractor Staff: During work hours licensed Jail Therapy program staff 

is primary response to these situations. Clinicians will be notified by 
Booking or deputies of the situation and assured that the inmate has signed 
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any and all bonding papers. Upon receipt of notification clinicians are to 
complete the following within one hour 

• 	 Locate medical chart & review 
• 	 Face-to-face evaluate client and complete Crisis Assessment Form 
• 	 Formulate Decision and Communicate 

o 	 If client is safe to be released advise Booking 
o 	 If client requires Ml hold upon release follow procedures 

and communicate to booking, Contractor supervisor, 
Medical Contractor supervisor/charge nurse, and 
FACILITY Duty Sergeant on shift. 

• 	 Document 
• 	 Contractor Emergency Services (ES) Staff: During non-business hours, 

weekends (when there are no licensed Contractor staff on site) , and 
holidays (when there are no licensed Contractor staff on site), 
Contractor Emergency Services will be the primary response to these 
situations. Contractor ES will be notified by Protocol that FACILITY or 
Medical Contractor staff has contacted the Contractor crisis line and 
needs an onsite evaluation. Upon receipt of notification Emergency 
Services clinicians are to complete the following within three (3) hours. 

• 	 Provide Driver's License & Contractor ID badge to front desk 
and request access to the infirmary 

• 	 Request medical chart, review & confirm that all necessary 
bonding papers are signed and completed. 

• 	 Face-to-face evaluate client and complete the Contractor Crisis 
Evaluation Form 

• 	 Formulate Decision and Communicate 
o 	 If client is safe to be released advise Medical Contractor 

Charge Nurse who will perform all other duties and 
notifications 

o 	 If client requires Ml hold upon release follow procedures 
and communicate to Medical Contractor Charge Nurse. 
Request to speak to Facility Shift Sergeant and collaborate 
regarding transportation. Depending on where inmate is 
going, safety, etc. FACILITY MAY provide 
transportation. If not, follow Contractor policy & 
procedure for transportation. 

• 	 Document 

Exception Situation: Inmate becomes substantially dangerous to self or others and on-site 
procedures (i.e. Suicide Watch, PRN medications, CRB review, etc.) have been exhausted and 
continue to be in effective. 

*This situation should only occur after ALL POSSIBLE collaborative 
efforts have been made to safely maintain the individual in incarceration * In other 
words, when this situation occurs it has already been brought to the attention of the 
Jail Program Supervisor, Medical Contractor Nurse Manager, and FACILITY staff. 
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If that is not the case, do not access Contractor Crisis Services - safely manage the 
situation and advise all parties of the inmate in question. 

• 	 Contractor Staff: During work hours LICENSD Jail Therapy program 
staff is primary response to these situations. Clinicians will be notified by 
Medical Contractor nurses or Facility deputies of the situation. 

• 	 Locate medical chart & review 
• 	 Discuss case with Contractor Supervisor, Medical Contractor 

supervisor, and either FACILITY Administrative Commander or 
designee. 

• 	 Face-to-face evaluate client and complete Crisis Assessment Form 
• 	 Communicate your assessment to Contractor Psychiatrist (See 

Psychiatric coverage policy below). 
• 	 Contractor Psychiatrist will formulate decision and communicate 

o 	 If client can be managed on site, with recommendations 
o 	 If client requires care outside FACILITY psychiatrist will 

need to write a letter addressed to Contractor that we 
psychiatrically recommend transferring this client to an 
inpatient facility based on medically necessary criteria that 
indicate client' s dangerousness to self & others cannot be 
safely managed on site. Letter must be dated, signed, and 
hand delivered to the Medical Contractor Health Services 
Administrator or Facility Administrative Commander. 

• 	 Document 
• 	 Contractor Emergency Services Staff: *NO RESPONSE REQUIRED* 

Due to the nature of on-call services, there is no mechanism in place to 
provide the psychiatric consultation and documentation (i.e. letter to 
Contractor) necessary for this case. If ES is called off-hours and 
requested to initiate transfer to inpatient hospital - advise that this must be 
handled by the on-site Contractor Jail Therapy Program Staff. 
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TERMS OF CONTRACT 

The tenn of this contract shall be from March 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016 with two (2) 
one-year renewals. The contract may be evaluated at any time during this period, at tenns and 
conditions mutually agreeable. The following provisions shall apply: 

• 	 Providing satisfactory service is given. 
• 	 Providing the Board of County Commissioners approves funding. 
• 	 The County may tenninate the contract at any time by giving written notice. 

OBJECTIVES OF THE RFP 

1. 	 To provide data necessary for the evaluation of competitive proposals submitted by 
qualified finns. 

2. 	 To provide a fair method for analyzing submitted proposals. 

3. 	 To result in a contract between the successful proposer (unless all proposals are rejected) 
and Adams County that will provide: 

a. 	 Quality mental health care services for inmates in custody and control of the 
Adams County Detention Facility; 

b. 	 Development and implementation of a health care plan with clear objectives, 
policies and procedures, and with a process of documenting ongoing achievement 
of contract obligations; 

c. 	 Operation of a mental health services program at full staffing, using only licensed, 
certified, and professionally trained personnel; 

d. 	 Administrative leadership that provides for both cost accountability and 
responsiveness to the contract administrator; 

e. 	 Assurance that required federal, state and local requirements and standards of care 
are met; 

f. 	 Continuing education for staff; 

g. 	 A mental health care system that is operated in such a way that is respectful of 
inmate rights to basic health care: 
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h. 	 Compliance with the standards established by the National Commission on 
Correctional Health Care for health care services in jails. NCCHC Audit was 
completed in September 2012. 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 

To be considered for award of this contract, the contractor must meet the following minimum 
qualifications: 

1. 	 The Contractor must be organized for the purpose of providing mental health care 
services, and have previous experience with proven effectiveness in administering 
correctional mental health care programs. 

2. 	 The Contractor must have at least five (5) continuous years of corporate experience in 
providing mental health care services at correctional facilities. 

3. 	 The Contractor must carry professional liability insurance in minimum amounts of One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) 
in the aggregate annually. The Contractor must carry separate liability insurance 
covering bodily injury, personal injury and property damage in the amount of One 
Million Dollars ($1 ,000.000.00) combined single limit. 

4. 	 The Contractor must have demonstrated its experience and the quality of its care by 
having obtained the accreditation of the National Commission on Correctional Health 
Care (NCCHC) 

5. 	 The Contractor must demonstrate its ability to provide a mental health care system 
specifically for the Adams County Detention Facility. It must demonstrate that it has the 
ability for a thirty (30) day start-up, that it has a proven system of recruiting staff, and 
that it has an adequate support staff in its central office capable of competently 
supervising and monitoring its operation in Adams County. 

6. 	 The Contractor must demonstrate the ability to help address recidivism by connecting 
inmates with follow up local mental health care once they leave the Adams County 
Detention Facility. 

MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL PROPOSALS 
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Proposals need to be tabbed and numbered In the following manner and must contain the 
following specific infonnation: 

1. 	 All proposals must contain sufficient infonnation concerning the program for Adams 
County to evaluate whether or not the Contractor meets "minimum qualifications" for all 
Proposers. 

2. 	 All proposals must demonstrate that the Contractor has the willingness and ability to 
comply with the scope of contract, mandatory requirements, specifications and program 
requirements, and in particular, the most current Standards for Health services in Jails, 
established by the National Commission on Correctional Health Care. 

3. 	 Additionally: 

a. 	 All proposals must list by name, address, phone and Contract Administrator all 
correctional institutions where proposer is currently providing mental health care 
and the length of time that each contract has been in effect. 

b. 	 All proposals must list by name, address, phone and Contract Administrator all 
correctional institutions where proposer has obtained an accreditation of the 
National Commission on Correctional Health Care or other recognized body. 

c. 	 All proposals must list by name, address, phone and Contract Administrator all 
correctional institutions where proposer has tenninated services, been terminated 
for any reason or lost a rebid as the incumbent. 

d. 	 Any legal action against the company or corporate principals within the company 
within the past 48 months must be disclosed. 

e. 	 Staff turnover ratios and layoffs, both executive and line, within the past 48 
months must be provided as part of Proposers response. 

4. 	 All proposals must contain a letter of intent from an insurance company authorized to do 
business in the State of Colorado stating its willingness to insure the proposer pursuant to 
the tenns of the contract. 

5. 	 Audited financial statements for the most recent fiscal year, and year before that, 
supporting the Proposers financial capability to undertake and complete the perfonnance 
of the contract. 

6. 	 All proposals must contain pricing for the first, second and third year of the contract. 
7. 	 All proposals must contain a staffing chart showing staffing of facility for 2417 coverage. 

EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS 
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An Evaluation Committee appointed by the Division Chief of the Adams County Detention 
Facility will evaluate each proposal. The Evaluation Committee will make recommendations to 
the Adams County Board of County Commissioners who shall make its award of contract to the 
successful proposer, which award will be subject to the finalization of agreement following 
contract negotiations. 

In making such evaluations, the Committee will be guided by the following point system that has 
100 points as the maximum total: 

Pricing oto 30 points 
Staffing oto 30 points 
Technical oto 20 points 
Qualifications oto 20 points 

In computing points for each of the above four criteria, the Evaluation Committee will take the 
following into consideration: 

1. 	 Basic Requirements: Initially, the proposal will be examined to detennine if it "qualifies" 
in that it meets the basic requirement for consideration. This review will pertain to such 
matters as adequate responsiveness to the RFP, necessary signatures, completeness, and 
clarity with respect to such essential factors as price. Failure of the proposal to meet the 
basic requirements of a proposal may disqualify it from further consideration. 

2. 	 Evaluation of Qualifying Proposals: Having detennined that a proposal meets the basic 
requirements, the Evaluation Committee will then evaluate it with respect to each of the 
following elements: 

a. 	 Price (Maximum 30 points): The stated lump sum base price for full perfonnance 
in meeting the requirements of the RFP will be of major consideration under this 
category. In further reviewing "price", the Evaluation Committee may also refer 
to the line item infonnation that has been provided. In addition, to be considered 
are such matters as increases or decreases for changes in the jail population and 
for the extension of the contract for a second and third year. 

b. 	 Technical (Maximum 20 points): In evaluating the proposal for its technical 
aspects, the Evaluation Committee will take into account the Proposers 
understanding of the Adams County Detention Facility's current health services 
system and the desire to maintain NCCHC accreditation. The Evaluation 
Committee will review the proposal for its completeness, see how the contractor 
will approach the task of initiating and then fully implementing its program, look 
at the proposed health care delivery system in all its facets including how desired 
results will be attained. In all, proposal's clarity, understanding of issues, 
completeness of program, and demonstration of assurance of perfonnance as to 
quality and efficiency will be weighted when scoring this category. Information 
regarding a proposers program for electronic record keeping will also be 
considered in this category. 
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c. 	 Staffing (Maximum 30 points): In evaluating this criterion, the Evaluation 
Committee will look at what is proposed as a staffing pattern for the Facility. 
Included in the review of this portion of the proposal will be: staffing levels (e.g., 
psychiatrists, clinicians, and supervisor. proposed coverage-taking into account 
the preceding and the pattern of coverage (number at each level, and days, hours, 
nights, weekends, full or part time, etc.). Also taken into account will be the 
levels of capabilities of senior management and on-site mental health and 
administrative supervisors, and the use of off-site professional assistance 
(specialists and consultants). 

d. 	 Qualifications (Maximum 20 points): Included in this criterion of the evaluation 
will be: Length of time bidder has been in the business of providing mental health 
care services in the jail/correctional setting; current and recent history of past 
performance by the proposer of a similar nature to the performance offered in 
response to the RFP; any evidence submitted (letters of reference) or readily 
attainable regarding the quality of past performance and the reliability of 
responsiveness of the proposer; the apparent capabilities of the proposer to 
perform well in the execution of its obligations under a contract with Adams 
County as evidenced by its leadership and management personnel, size of 
organization, length of time in business, past performance, and other current 
contractual obligations defining the Proposers capability to undertake and 
successfully fulfill the obligations proposed to be undertaken by its submission of 
a proposal in response to this RFP. 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

BID BONDS 

All Proposers must submit a Bid Bond in the amount of five (5) percent of the first year contract 
amount at the time of submittal of the proposal. 

PERFORMANCE BOND 

The selected proposer must maintain a Performance Bond in the amount of twenty-five (25) 
percent of the contract price for the duration of the contract. The Performance Bond for the first 
year shall be submitted to the County within 30 days after notice of award. The Performance 
Bond may be in the form of a certified check payable to the County, or may be in the form of a 
Surety Bond from a company qualified to do business in the State of Colorado. The costs for the 
bonds must be included in your proposal amount. 

AGREEMENTS OF UNDERSTANDING 

The awarded contractor will be required to sign Adams County's service agreement. 

SUBCONTRACTS 
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The Adams County Board of County Commissioners must approve, in advance; all subcontracts 
entered into by the Contractor for the purpose of completing the provisions of this contract. The 
Contractor shall not sell, assign, transfer, nor convey any of its rights except with the written 
consent of the County. 

ALTERATIONS TO CONTRACT 

Any alterations, variations, modifications, or waivers of the provisions of the contract will be 
valid only if they are reduced to writing, duly signed by the parties and attached to the original 
contract. 

PROPOSAL OBLIGATION 

The contents of the proposal and any clarifications thereto submitted by the successful proposer 
shall become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the ensuing 
contract. All terms and conditions printed in this RFP will also become part of the contractual 
obligation and incorporated by reference into the ensuing contract. 

PROPOSAL IDEAS AND CONCEPTS 

Adams County reserves the right to adopt or to use for its benefit and without obligation, any 
concept, plan, or idea contained in a proposal submitted in response to this RFP unless stamped 
proprietary information and not for duplication, except in the context of duplication for 
contractual reasons. 

CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL 

The County shall have the right to reject the employment by the Contractor of any person or 
firm, and to require the removal of any person or firm employed or engaged by the Contractor, 
when it deems such action to be in its best interest and in the best interest of attaining successful 
implementation of its correctional health care services program. It is further noted that the right 
of entrance by any person to the jail is under the sole jurisdiction of the Adams County Sheriff's 
Office. 

CONTRACTOR COOPERATION 

All Contractor personnel, including the personnel of its subcontractor and agents, will be subject 
to security background checks and clearances by the Sheriff's office. In each instance, the 
individual and the Contractor will provide such cooperation as may be reasonably required to 
complete the security check. 

COMMUNICA TION 
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Provision shall be made for quarterly meetings between the health services and facility 
administration, including their documentation, to facilitate good communications and good 
rapport between security and health services. 

PERMITS AND LICENSES 

All permits and licenses required by Federal, State or local laws, rules and regulations necessary 
for the implementation of the work undertaken by the Contractor pursuant to the contract shall be 
secured and paid for by the Contractor. Copies of such licenses shall be given to the Contract 
Monitor upon receipt. This shall include fees associated with NCCHC Medical accreditation 
(should this process be selected) and periodic accreditation reviews. 

COMPUTER INTERFACE 

The Adams County Detention Facility currently uses Intergraph as the Jail Management System. 
The Contractor will be expected to cooperate with and provide support for any necessary 
interfaces to or medical staff use of this Jail Management System. Integraph has a medical 
module that the Facility has determined it will not use. 

IMMUNITY FROM LIABILITY 

The Contractor agrees to indemnify and to hold the County and its agents harmless for, from, and 
against any and all claims, suits, expenses, damages, or other liabilities, including reasonable 
Attorney fees and court costs arising out of damage or injury or property caused or sustained by 
any person or persons as a result of the performance or failure of the Health Care Provide to 
provide services pursuant to the terms of the contract. 

THIRD PARTY REIMBURSEMENT 

In the event that outside health services provided under the contract are covered by third party 
payments, including but not limited to worker's compensation, insurance companies, and 
Medicaid/Medicare, and the Contractor receives reimbursement from such entities, the amount 
paid to the Contractor shall be netted against the $600,000 / $750,000 aggregate cap. After the 
aggregate is exceeded, the Contractor shall continue to seek reimbursement from such entities, 
and such payments shall be paid over to the County, subject to an administrative fee of 15% of 
the amount reimbursed. The County agrees to facilitate this effort and to make available to the 
Contractor necessary records and information for processing such claims. 

REIMBURSEMENT FOR SERVICES 

The Adams County Sheriffs Office shall pay the Contractor for the provision of designated 
services during the term of the contract, in the amount of the proposal or other agreed upon sum 
as documented in the contract, in equal monthly payments. 
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CONTRACT MONITORING 

The County shall have the unfettered right to monitor the Contractor' s work in every respect. In 
this regard, the Contractor shall provide its full cooperation, and ensure the cooperation of its 
employees, agents, and subcontractors. Further, the Contractor shall make available for 
inspection and/or copying when requested, original time sheets, invoices, charge slips, 
credentialing statements, continuing education and training records, and any other data, records 
and accounts relating to the Contractor's work and performance under the contract. In the event 
the Contractor does not hold such material in its original form, a true copy shall be provided. 

PRICE PROPOSAL 

A Proposal Price Sheet (attachment) which states, as a lump sum, the base price for which the 
Contractor offers to provide the services and meet all the requirements of the RFP for the first 
year, based on an average daily population of One thousand fifty (1050) inmates should be 
completed. The attachment should also include: 

a. 	 Cost (per diem) of inmate average daily population over One thousand one hundred and 
fifty (1150) and reduction for inmate population under nine hundred and fifty (950). 

b. 	 A breakdown of the lump sum price by line item descriptions and amounts (e.g. staffing, 
consulting/specialty care, inpatient hospital care, pharmaceuticals, hospital emergency 
care costs, supplies, misc. expenses, general administrative and operating costs, etc.). 
The total for the line items should be the same as the stated lump sum base price. 

c. 	 Total Cost of Second Year Contract (January 1, 2017-December 31 , 2017) 

d. 	 Total Cost of Third Year Contract (January 1, 2018-December 31 , 2018) 

e. 	 Explanation of the formula for inflationary increase for the two subsequent year 
renewals , if any. 

f. 	 A matrix showing salary ranges for every category of staff position, along with a 
summary of benefits available to mental health staff. 

TERMINATION OF CONTRACT 

A. 	 Mutual Termination of Contract 

1. 	 If either party fails to fulfill its obligations under the Contract in a timely and 
proper manner, or if either party violates any material covenant, agreement, or 
stipulation of the Contract, the party shall thereupon have the right to terminate 
the Contract by giving written notice to the other party of termination which will 
occur no less than 30 calendar days after the date of notice. The notice shall 
specify the effective date of the termination, and the reasons therefore, unless the 
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party to whom notice is given cures the breach to the satisfaction of the party 
giving notice prior to the effective date of termination. 

2. 	 Notwithstanding the above, the Contractor shall not be relieved of liability to the 
County for damages sustained by the County by virtue of any breach of the 
Contract by the Contractor and the County may withhold any payments to the 
Contractor, in an amount reasonably calculated to equal the estimated damages, 
for the purpose of setoff until such time as the exact amount of damages to the 
County from the Contractor is determined. 

B. 	 Termination for Convenience of the County 

The County may terminate the Contract at any time by giving written notice to the 
Contractor of termination which will occur no less than 60 calendar days after the date of 
notice and specify the effective date thereof. If the Contract is terminated by the County 
without cause as provided in this paragraph, the Contractor will be paid an amount which 
bears the same ratio to the total compensation as the services actually performed bear to 
the total services of the Contractor covered by the Contract, less payments of 
compensation previously made. 

C. 	 Payment due to Termination 

In case the services of the Contractor are determined to be unsatisfactory, or because of 
the Contractor's failure to prosecute the work with diligence or within the time specified, 
the County will pay Contractor for work accomplished to date of terminate as follows: 
The percentage of the total lump sum fee that represents the ratio of work performed to 
the total amount of work. 

D. 	 Records and Documentation Remain the Property of the County 

All medical and other records, policies and procedures, manuals, instructional books, 
orientation, and continuing education records and materials, an documentation of every 
sort, developed for or used in the operation of the Mental Health Care Program under the 
contract, shall be the property of the County and, at the termination of the contract, 
remain the property of the County without further obligation. 

SPECIFICA TIONS AND PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS 

ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 

1. 	 A full-time on site Mental Health Services Supervisor shall be provided who shall have 
the general responsibility for the successful delivery of mental health care pursuant to this 
solicitation and final contract. The Contractor shall indicate the qualifications of as well 
as the range and scope of the responsibilities and activities of this position. 
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2. 	 The Contractor shall, upon request, provide to the County proof of licenses and/or 
certificates for all professional staff. In addition, malpractice insurance must be on file 
for all employees, if applicable. 

3. 	 Copies of staffing schedules encompassing all mental health care staff are to be submitted 
to the Contract Administrator on the tenth (10th) of each month for the upcoming month. 
Daily updates should be supplied if there are changes. 

4. 	 Monthly and daily statistics will be required as follows : 

a. 	 A statistical report with narrative on noteworthy accomplishments or events will 
be due on the fifth calendar day of each month to the Contract Administrator that 
includes, but is not limited to, the data required for compliance with NCCHC 
accreditation. 

b. 	 A report of the previous twenty-four (24) hours that captures but is not limited to, 
the following data. This report shall be submitted to the Contract Administrator 
on a daily basis (Saturday and Sunday reports may be submitted Monday 
morning): 

Number, name and number of day's delinquent mental health evaluations 
Report of status of inmates in jail infirmary 
Staffing by position and hours worked 
Vacancies by position and number of days vacant 

5. 	 Grievances shall be monitored to detect areas of concern. Inmate grievances shall be 
documented on a log as to type of complaint and a response shall be prepared within 
three days of receipt. Completed responses will be returned to the inmate through the 
Contract Administrator. Grievance data shall also be provided to the facility 
Accreditation manager. 

6. 	 The establishment of a comprehensive quality improvement activity that will monitor the 
mental health services provided. 

7. 	 The contract Contractor for mental health services shall, in times of emergency or threat 
thereof, whether accidental, natural or man-made, provide mental health assistance to the 
Adams County Sheriffs Office to the extent or degree required by Adams County 
Sheriffs Office policies and procedures. 

8. 	 As the designated Mental Health Authority, the contractor's psychiatrist and Mental 
Health Services Supervisor shall assist the facility in establishing the required training 
curriculum in accordance with NCCHC standards in the area of mental health care and 
mental health emergency response. 

PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS 
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1. 	 Adequate mental health care personnel required to provide those services listed in this 
RFP must be provided. Proposals must show a complete and detailed staffing 
arrangement, by degree of competency, which shall provide adequate support for the 
operation of the mental health care program. Staffing plans are to include the total 
number of employees full (40 hours per week on site) and part-time; position titles and 
license/certification; reporting order; total number and positions per shift and on holidays. 
Adequate mental health care personnel are required for twenty-four (24) hours, seven (7) 
days per week inmate mental health services. 

3. 	 The Adams County Detention Facility may request replacement of any contractor 
personnel believed unable to carry out the responsibilities of the contract. The Facility 
shall approve all appointments to the position of administrator, medical director, and 
supervlsmg nurses. 

4. 	 Written job descriptions and protocols to define specific duties and responsibilities for all 
assignments must be provided in the proposal. 

5. 	 Personnel files (or copies thereof) of contract employees assigned to the county jail are to 
be maintained at the jail and shall be available to the Jail Administrator or designee. 

6. 	 New health care staff will "shadow" and/or receive a minimum of 36 hours of training by 
existing medical staff prior to working independently on any shift. All Contractor 
employees will be required to attend training on "Games Criminals Play", radio 
procedures, interpersonal communication skills and other security topics made 
available quarterly by the Sheriffs Office. The total classroom time for these subjects is 
approximately ten hours, upon hiring and annually thereafter, and the Contractor shall be 
responsible for employee wages and/or overtime necessary to fulfill this requirement. 
The Contractor shall also be responsible for providing other required training to include 
hours required as part ofNCCHC standards for staff working directly with inmates. 

PERSONNEL BACKGROUNDS AND SECURITY 

1. 	 All prospective contract personnel will have an NCIC/CCIC clearance run by the 
Sheriffs Office prior to be considered for employment. The Contractor shall be 
responsible for any costs imposed by the Colorado Bureau of Investigation (CBI) for 
processing fingerprints on applicants. Once the initial clearance is completed the 
prospective employee must complete the background package supplied by the Sheriffs 
Office with supporting documentation including, but not limited to, copies of birth 
certificate, driver's license, social security card, GED or high school diploma, 
professional licenses and military service if applicable. The Contractor will also be asked 
to furnish a signed statement indicating that the company has completed a reasonable 
background on each applicant as well as provide Affirmation of Legal work Status. The 
applicant will be required to sign a statement agreeing to abide by the rules of the facility. 
The Sheriff s Office upon receipt of the completed package shall review the information 

31 




and schedule and integrity interview with the applicant. When this process is complete, 
normally in 14-21 days, the contractor will be advised that the applicant may begin 
working and a picture ID badge will be issued by the Sheriffs Office. No employee will 
be allowed to work prior to this process being completed without the expressed consent 
of the contract liaison or designee. Persons completing an actual internship shall be 
required to comply with the complete background process prior to working. 

CARE AND TREATMENT REQUIRMENTS 

1. 	 The Contractor shall provide for twenty-four (24) hour a day emergency mental health 
care services to include on-site emergencies and acute hospital services with one 
physician or more mental health care Contractors. 

2. 	 A written manual of standardized policies and defined procedures, approved by the 
mental health care authority and the Adams County Detention Facility, must be reviewed 
at least annually and revised as necessary under the direction of the health care authority 
and with the approval of the Adams County Detention Facility. 

3. 	 Non-inmate mental health services shall be provided in the form of emergency care for 
staff, contractor, and visitors for the purpose of stabilizing the condition and arranging for 
transport. 

4. 	 The Contractor shall share responsibility for mental health pharmaceutical costs with the 
Contracted Health Contractor, for the Detention Facility. All prescription medications 
shall be prescribed by a responsible physician, nurse practitioner, advanced nurse 
practitioner or psychiatrist all of whom are licensed to prescribe in the State of Colorado 
and in good standing with all licensing and regulatory boards. The Contractor and 
medical Contractor hereby acknowledge that the costs of Mental Health pharmaceuticals 
will be a shared responsibility with the contracted medical Contractor and agrees to share 
information with the contracted medical in order to exchange necessary information to 
share cost of mental health pharmaceuticals. 

5. 	 All controlled substances, syringes, needles and surgical instruments will be stored under 
security conditions acceptable to the Adams County Detention Facility. 

6. 	 Inmates will not be allowed to provide any health care services, including record keeping. 

MEDICAL RECORDS REQUIREMENTS 
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1. 	 A medical record consistent with state regulations and community standards of practice 
shall be maintained on each inmate booked into the facility . These records shall be kept 
separate from the jail confinement records of the inmate. 

2. 	 All medical records will be kept via EMR (electronic medical record). If the contractor is 
not currently using an EMR they will be expected to implement an acceptable EMR 
within six months of receiving the awarded contract. The contractor will agree to 
facilitate all interfaces with the EMR. The contractor shall ensure that data accessed by 
external systems through an API or web services is developed and maintained at no 
additional cost. Adams County shall prescribe the method for making the data available, 
or for sharing the information. 

3. 	 EMR will be made accessible for both data entry and record review to contracted 
behavioral health vendor, for purposes of shared responsibility in both prescription 
medication and inmates housed in Infirmary and/or receiving both medical and mental 
health services. 

4. 	 Individual health care records will be initiated and maintained for every inmate regarding 
medical, dental, or mental health services received as a result of the inmate screening 
process and for services rendered following the inmate's assignment to a housing area. 

5. 	 In any case where medical care is at issue, or in any criminal or civil litigation where the 
physical or mental condition of an inmate is at issue, the Contractor shall make accessible 
to the Sheriff, Jail Commander, Contract Administrator, District Attorney, or County 
Attorney such records and, upon receipt, provide copies. 

6. 	 The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that all records prepared or acquired by the 
Contractor during performance of services under the contract will immediately become 
the property of the Sheriff s Office. 

7. 	 Inmate medical records shall be released in accordance with HIP AA regulations and 
Colorado Open Records Laws. Duplication of medical records shall be the responsibility 
of the medical staff and the actual release will be the responsibility of the Sheriffs 
Office. Fees collected by the Sheriffs Office for copies of medical or mental health 
records shall be forwarded to the Contractor. 

8. 	 Included in the inmate population are inmates incarcerated on behalf of the Colorado 
Department of Corrections and Municipalities. The Contractor shall promptly notify 
Contract Administrator of the need for other than routine care for such inmates and shall 
provide documentation of required treatment to the Department of Corrections or 
Municipality as required. The Contractor shall submit all related bills to the Contract 
Administrator to ensure reimbursement to the County of all outside medical expenses and 
cost of pharmaceuticals incurred on behalf of such inmates. All such reimbursements are 
returned to the Adams County General Fund. 
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9. 	 If an inmate medical record cannot be located within twenty-four (24) hours of a 
discovered loss, the Contract Administrator shall be immediately notified. 

10. Inactive medical records will be maintained in accordance with the laws 	of the State of 
Colorado and the American Medical Association. The Contractor shall prepare inactive 
files for archiving on CD-ROM. This shall include removing duplicate documentation 
and staples and placing all paperwork in chronological order. The Adams County 
Sheriffs Office will be responsible for the archiving of inactive files. Inactive files will 
be defined as files on persons who have not been in custody in the Adams County 
Detention Facility during the past twelve (12) months. Files to be archived for a given 
year shall be prepared and ready for pick-up by April 1 of the year that they will be 
archived according to the following schedule: 

1. 2012 files Must be ready by April 1, 2016 
11. 2013 files Must be ready by April 1, 2017 

lll. 2014files Must be ready by April 1, 2018 

11. Any 	and all legal actions or requests affecting inmates and/or the medical contract 
Contractor must be provided, in writing, to the Contract Administrator within twenty-four 
hours. 

SUPPLIES AND OFFICE EQUIPMENT 

The contract Contractor should be prepared to provide whatever stock supplies are required to 
perform under the contract. Contractor will also supply at its expense, all other supplies required 
to carry out its performance. Said supplies will include, but not be limited to, forms, books, 
manuals, medical record folders, alpha indexes and forms, pharmaceuticals, laboratory fees, 
prosthetics, hand instruments, needles and sharps, special medical items, testing devices, 
containers and clinical waste receptacles, inmate information brochures, individual and group 
materials, gloves and coverings, and disinfectants. Adams County will supply general cleaning 
products for routine maintenance of the medical unit as well as supply soap, toilet paper and 
hand towels for both inmate and staff restrooms. All equipment owned by the Facility may be 
used in conjunction with that furnished by the contract Contractor. Basic office furniture to 
include desks, chairs and file cabinets currently in place will be available for the Contractor' s 
use. 

The Contractor shall be responsible for reimbursing Adams County for all long distance 
telephone charges if requested. The County will provide and pay for a language line interpreting 
service. 

In addition, the Contractor will supply at its expense, on-site office equipment it needs such as 
copiers, fax machines, pagers, calculators, additional telephones and telephone lines beyond 
those supplied by the county, ordinary computer equipment and typewriters. The County will 
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continue to make available computer terminals that are part of the mainframe system currently 
used by the Facility. 

All equipment purchased under the contract shall be the property of the County and shall remain 
on site at the termination of the contract. All supplies purchased for use in the performance of 
the contract, shall be the property of the County and shall remain on site at the termination of the 
contract. 

The County shall be responsible for maintenance of all medical and office equipment supplied 
and owned by the County for use by the Contractor. Should such equipment become non­
serviceable due to routine use, then the County will be responsible for its replacement. 

SERVICES TO STAFF 

1. 	 Emergency services including first aid, assessment, stabilization and the coordination of 
transport of employees or visitors who become ill or injured in the Adams County jail. 

2. 	 The Mental Health Services Supervisor will also be required to present a brief 
(approximately one hour) introduction to the mental medical services class during the 
monthly in-house academy for new employees. 

NON-PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS AND PENALTIES 

The Contractor must agree to the following conditions and penalties for contract non­
performance. (Penalties for non-performance by the Mental Health Contractor are incorporated 
into the attached contract.) 

1. 	 A $50,000 penalty for not achieving NCCHC Accreditation. 

2. 	 The Contractor will reimburse the actual cost plus twenty-five percent (25%) of the total 
for the staff positions, which remain unfilled or uncovered after fourteen (14) days, from 
the initial date of vacancy. For administrative (including Health Services Administrator), 
physician, or dental services, the Contractor shall be required to fill or cover the vacancy 
within seven (7) calendar days or be subject to the same penalty. 

Prior to invoking any of the above penalties the contract monitor shall meet with the Mental 
Health Services Supervisor and Detention Facility Commander to discuss and validate the non­
performance. Notice of non-performance will then be provided in writing to the Contractor. 
Should any of the above penalties be invoked they may be paid as a credit against the monthly 
billing for contract services. 
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Attachment A 

PROPOSAL PRICE FORM 

All labor, materials, services and equipment necessary for the completion of the work described 
in this document and as proposed by the bidder will be completed for the lump sum amount of 

Dollars 

($______________~). (Enter the total base proposal amount for first year. 

1. *T otal cost of first year contract) $------------------ ­

36 




Additional cost/refund per inmate/per day when the average daily population is: 

a. 	 Over 1200 $------------------ ­

b. 	 Under 1000 $------------------ ­

2. 	 Total cost of second year contract $---------------- ­
(January 1, 2017-December 31,2017) 

3. 	 Total cost of third year contract $------------------ ­
(January 1, 2018-December 31, 2018) 

A. 	 Provide explanation of the fonnula for inflationary Increase for the two 
subsequent year renewals, if any. 

B. 	 *Also provide a breakdown of the lump sum price by line item descriptions and 
amounts (e.g.staffing, consulting/specialty care, inpatient hospital care, 
phannaceuticals, hospital emergency care costs, supplies, misc. expenses, general 
administrative and operating costs, etc.) The total for the line items should be the 
same as the stated lump sum base price. 
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Attachment B 

ADAMS COUNTY, COLORADO 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE INMATE 

MENT AL HEALTH SERVICES 
PROPOSAL FORM 

VENDOR'S STATEMENT 

I have read and fully understand all the special conditions herein set forth in the 
foregoing paragraphs, and by my signature set forth hereunder, I hereby agree to comply 
with all said special conditions as stated or implied. In consideration of the above 
statements, the following proposal is hereby submitted. 

WE THE UNDERDSIGNED HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF 

Addenda # Addenda # Addenda #___ 

If None, Please write NONE. 

~fIl;lYl ~% Retwh CuvW 
COMPANYN ME 

ADDRESS 


Th V rJt--~j 4d tlAt15 

~CZ> Lo eeL-A D 


CITY, COUNTY, STATE PRINTED SIGNATURE 


TELEPHONE NUMBER TITLE 

(Seal - If Bid is by a Corporation) 
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Attachment C 

CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE 

Pursuant to Colorado Revised Statute, § 8-17.5-101 , et.seq. , as amended 511 3/08 , as a 
prerequisite to entering into a contract for services with Adams County, Colorado, the 
undersigned Contractor hereby certifies that at the time of this certification, Contractor does not 
knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien who will perform work under the attached 
contract for services and that the Contractor will participate in the E-Verify Program or 
Department program, as those terms are defined in C.R.S. § 8-17.5-101, et. seq. in order to 
confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment to 
perform work under the attached contract for services. 

CONTRACTOR: 

/Date 

Signature 

Title 

Note: Registration for the E-Verify Program can be completed at: https://www.vis­
dhs.com\employerregistration. It is recommended that employers review the sample 
"memorandum of understanding" available at the website prior to registering 
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Attachment D 

INSURANCE 

The Contractor will be required to procure and maintain, at his own expense and without cost to 
the County, the kinds and minimum amounts of insurance as follows: 

I. Comprehensive General Liability 

In the amount of not less than $1,000,000. per occurrence person and $2,000,000. 
Aggregate. Coverage to include: 

A. Premises 
B. Products/Completed Operations 
C. Broad Form Comprehensive, General Liability 
D. Adams County as Additional Insured 

II. Comprehensive Automobile Liability 

In the amount of not less than $500,000 singles limit for bodily Injury and 
property damage, per occurrence. 

III. Employers Liability and Workers' Compensation 

The Contractor shall secure and maintain employer ' s liability and Workers ' 
Compensation Insurance that will protect them against any and all claims' 
resulting from injuries to and death of workers engaged in work under the 
Agreement. 

IV. Professional Liability 

The Contractor shall maintain Professional Liability (sometimes referred to as 
errors and omissions insurance) in amounts not less than $1,000,000 each 
occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate. 

Certificate of Insurance 

The Contractor shall not commence work under the contract until they have submitted to the 
County and received approval thereof, certificates of insurance showing that they have complied 
with the foregoing insurance. 

All referenced insurance policies and/or certificates of insurance shall be issued to include 
Adams County as an "additional insured." The name of the bid or project must appear on the 
certificate of insurance. 
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1. 	 Underwriters shall have no right of recovery or subrogation against Adams County; it 
being the intent of the parties that the insurance policies so affected shall protect both 
parties and be primary coverage for any and all loses covered by the described insurance. 

2. 	 The clause entitles "Other Insurance Provisions" contained in any policy including 
Adams County, as an additional insured shall not apply to Adams County. 

3. 	 The insurance companies issuing the policy or policies shall have no response against 
Adams County for payment of any premiums due or for any assessments under any fonn 
of any policy. 

4. 	 Any and all deductibles contained in any insurance policy shall be assumed by and at the 
sole risk of the Contractor. 

If any of the said policies shall be or at any time become unsatisfactory to the County as 
to fonn or substance, or of a company issuing any such policy shall be or at any time 
become unsatisfactory to the County, the Contractor shall promptly obtain a new policy, 
submit same to the Purchasing Agent of Adams County for approval and thereafter 
submit a certificate of insurance as hereinabove provided. Upon failure of the Contractor 
to furnish, deliver, and maintain such insurance as provided herein, the contract, at the 
election of the County, may be immediately declared suspended, discontinued or 
tenninated. Failure of the Contractor in obtaining and/or maintaining any required 
insurance shall not relieve the Contractor from any liability under the contract, nor shall 
the insurance requirements be construed to conflict with the obligations of the Contractor 
concerning indemnification. 
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Community Reach Center is excited for this third opportunity to serve as the comprehensive 
mental health provider for Adams County Detention Facility (ACDF). Over the past seven years 
Community Reach Center has provided mental health care in this capacity and demonstrated 
three consistent deliverables: 

National Commission on Correctional Health Care (NCCHC) accreditation, 
Continuity of care from jail to community, and 

.3 Integrated health care collaboration with Adams County Detention Facility medical 
vendor, Sherriff's office and court services as well as with the larger Adams County 
criminal justice community. 

Community Reach Center's statement of work emphasizes continued non-profit agency state 
of the art performance of these deliverables with additional focus on continuous quality 
improvement that is cost effective. 

Community Reach Center is committed to the health and well-being of Adams County and 
our residents as evidenced by our extensive community based programs that promote mental 
health and decrease recidivism. Based on both SAMSHA GAINS Center Sequential Intercept 
Mapping (SIM) model research and our Adams County experience, the majority of individuals 
who enter our jail system are either first time offenders needing supportive, prevention services 
to avoid further penetration into the criminal justice system or are repeat offenders who are in 
need of comprehensive mental health care and substance use disorder treatment. 

We are the Community Mental Health Center for Adams County and our mission is to enhance 
the health of our community. Our passion to serve as good stewards to those in need has been 
extended into Adams County Detention Facility (ACDF) and has impacted over 11,828 lives in 
the last calendar year with an anticipated 1,000 lives to be served in the month of December, 
which is up from 12,525 in 2014, and up from 10,844 in the 2013. Community Reach Center 
will not only serve inmate-patients while detained at ACDF, but will continue to serve upon 
their release. In 2015, we successfully launched information sharing between ACDF Jail 
Managements System (JMS) and our Center's electronic health record, giving us the capacity to 
know on a daily basis two critical pieces of information; 

1 Community Reach Center clients who have been booked into jail, and 
\ Community Reach Center clients who have been released from jail. In the past six 

months that data has demonstrated an average of 250 - 350 Community Reach Center 
clients (active or recently active within past six months) are in ACDF at any given time. 

With the data sharing between JMS and our agency we are able to rapidly respond to those in need: 

( 1 J for those entering the jail we can triage our staff to conduct mental health 

I I I I 

evaluations and discharge planning services aimed at reducing recidivism as 
well as risk management; 

--, --~......... , 

~-=~----------------~ 

(7 1 for those releasing from 
the jail we are able 
to notify outpatient 
treatment teams, mobile 
crisis teams, and our 
own jail staff to support 
engagement in treatment 
post-release which 
improves continuity 
of care. 
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Since piloting this data sharing and subsequent referral process in the past si x months, we 
have successfully engaged approximately 10% of clients leaving the jail into services. Our goal 
for the next fiscal year is to increase that engagement to 50% and to begin tracking recidivism 
back to ACDF of these clients post-release using a rapid change process supported by a newly 
awarded (2015) grant from National Council whereby ACDF and Community Reach Center will 
be meeting monthly with other Jails and CMHC in the National to target improved continuity of 
care from jail to community based treatment. 

We are proud that volume of services is matched with high quality of care evidenced by the 
fact that in the seven years at ACDF, Community Reach Center has been a critical part of ACDF 
passing site visits from NCCHC and has never been the subject of any NCCHC corrective action 
plans . Part of our consistent success in meeting NCCHC standards is due to our collaboration 
with the existing medical vendor, court services, jail deputies, and other ACDF and County 
personnel. Our strong community partner collaboration with 17th Judicial Courts, 17th Judicial 
Probation, Division of Adult Parole, Department of Youth Corrections, Adams County Criminal 
Justice Coordinating Council (CJCC), Adams County Community Corrections, and many others 
have only enhanced our services at ACDF. These relationships improve daily work flow issues 
(e.g . how to get Problem-Solving courts appropriate and timely mental health evaluations 
so that we can support offenders getting the right services, at the right time) and with best 
practices sharing that inform our new targets of excellence (e.g. tracking recidivism rates for 
the Community Engagement, Supervision and Evaluation (CESE) Program) . Figure 1.0 below 
demonstrates our existing collaboration and community involvement which supports our 
capacity to serve individuals in the criminal justice system. 

- . 
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Community Reach Center fully agrees to continue our practice of integration with the 
chosen medical vendor. We acknowledge that this includes shared costs for mental health 
pharmaceuticals and any related laboratory costs . We share the County's vision that this type of 
shared practice best serves the patient and we have demonstrated our commitment to integrated 
health care at the local, state and national levels. In addition to our seven years of demonstrated 
experience with the existing ACDF medical vendor, it is important to note that integrated care is a 
philosophy of care at Community Reach Center and a high priority in the State of Colorado. 

We are currently one of four sites in the State of Colorado selected for the SIM Bidirectional 
Integrated Health Home grant. The purpose of this grant is to integrate health care with 
behavioral health, to include development of information technology that allows for integration 
of health and behavioral health data, and working towards an alternative payment structure . 
Community Reach Center also has three other existing contracts with primary care providers 
in the community ranging from Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHC's) to private primary 
care vendors . In all cases we have the experience and expertise in integrating our specialized 
mental health and substance use interventions with another medical provider. At ACDF, our 
current practice is to document services directly into the medical providers electronic health 
record to maintain NCCHC standards, continuity in medical and pharmaceutical care as well as 
risk management. In recent years, we have expanded our staff at ACDF with other supporting 
grants and contracts focused on re-entry services . In those cases, we are documenting in our 
Center's electronic health record to support continuity of care outside of the jail/post- release . 

Community Reach Center will continue our current practice to share cost and responsibility of 
pharmaceuticals prescribed within ACDF. While we are eager to work with any vendor on how 
best to accomplish that collaboration, we have observed that the simple process of documenting 
in the medical vendor 's electronic health record, monthly reporting of pharmaceuticals 
prescribed by provider, and quarterly review has resulted in seamless pharmaceutical services 
for the inmates and cost-saving by cost-sharing . We support that having one pharmacy vendor 
and one pharmacy budget for ACDF along with accountable collaboration between mental 
health and medical is not only best practice, but cost efficient care. 

Sharing information and releas ing information is simplified with 
electronic health records. Community Reach Center provides "[n OUI" missioll to enhallce the 
monthly and quarterly data to ACDF and the medi cal vendor health of011/' commlllJih) we 
on services and we are eager to improve that data-sharing (lI'e committed to providing 
practice once vendors are selected and the medical contractor 's the rigllt services, at the right
electronic health record is known. With that information, our time. .laiimay not be the best 
Information Systems leadership can connect with the medical 

01' idea/ place to start sel'vices.
contractor's Information Systems leadership and develop 

but wlrell that happellsmeasures to share information both within and between the 
Commullin) Readl Celltel'medical vendor's electronic health record and ours . 
is the/'e to compas.o;iollately 

Community Reach Center Quality Assurance Department has engage illdh.iduais with 
an established practice in vetting all requests for records, mental "ea/tll alld substance 
subpoenas and other legal matters with Adams County, ACDF, lise needs 0/1 (/ cleu /' alid 
and the medical vendor. All communication and conduct shall be specific goal: let:o; sel't~e you
compliant with Health Insurance Portability and Accountability 

outside these wails alld lIotAct of 1996 (HIPAA), Code of Federal Regulations, Title 42, 
see you agaill b(lck withinPart 2 (CFR 42, Part 2) and Colorado Open Records Laws and 
these wails...available to Adams County when needed as well as available to 

medical contract for purposes of continuity of care. 
"'Dr. Abigail Tucker, 

Psy.D., Clinical Director 
over Jail Services at ACDF 
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Rick has been with Community P.each c enter since 2000 and Ilas served ilS the Chief Executive Officer smce 20M. As C 0 , RIel-: utilizes IllS 
e Y.pe rj~n ce in cornly,un ity relations, leg is!at ive arrairs, cont ract negotiations, cl inica l casework and prob:",rn solving to mo:e the m;ssw n, vi $;on and 
goals of COnlOl Unity Reach Center. 

HiS coreer In Olen al he~ l t h spans 27 yea rs and Ilu ll dreds of m iles frorn DiJ llas, Texas, to Thorn ton, CQ lorado. As a therapist, Rick speCialized 111 
work ing with I1 lgl1 risk clHld ren and fa milies. In 1991, he launc ll ed Doucet and ASSOCiates, prOvid ini) consultations fo r psycil itl tnsts, as wt:11as otl.er 
cl inical staff, and acl;ed as d liaison between school systems and sociol ag(;ncies for clients . 

Rick serves as the liaison for va rious state and comm unity agencies and is a contributing mem ber of severa l Colorado comll IIttees addrt'ssill(l men tol 
hea ll h and substance atlUse Issues, program development and outcome m easu res. HIS work IS co,ltinuously strengthening til e healtil of Co lorad,}ns, lJo t t! at tI.e state 
end co unty level. 

Currentl y, Rick serves as th e Chai r of the Co ntracting Committee for t(-I e Co loriJ do Behavioral Healthcare Council (CBHC), working With the State of Colorado to 
provide comprehenSive behavioral healtn and psychiatric serv ic.,s to all Co lorado communities. As a recog l1lze{1 leader in evidelK i" based In tegrated ({I re systeiTls, 
RICk Is able to help CSHC strengthen tile bond between comm unit y medical and menta! 11ealth ca re , ncoura '] mg a serv i e delivr, ry !norl !':1 that strengtl', n~ th ,~ (i V ~I-a 1i 

heal th of Colorado com m unities . Forrner!y, Ricl< has served CBHC as the Chai r of the Colorado Behavioral Heal thcare Systems ailel CI1air of ti1e Fmance Com mittee. 
Add it ionall y, he was the rormer SEcretary and Treasu rer. 

RICk received his master's degree in Psycl1Ology (rom Texas A&M Commerce, as well as his bache!ur's degree in Psychology and RehJiJ!liliiti()11 rronl Stepr,en f. t, u<,ti n 

Stale University. 

111.. r:hief Operations 
Off, c~r at Com:T,urlily 
R~;o(h ( enter, 
oversecmg service 
deli ery, service 
support systems ann 
"ll lotc-rnal ope,',,1ions. 
Adliit iollaliy, shE. 

inlt i? t>:" as w,.,11 as IfTI[JIp.mellt!i, tl1'l 
Cer, ter 's s tr;;t~glC pian dnd f~r.l li l,,, tr=s 

cornrrrunicalJO\l between Corn muliil'y 
Peach ( "'fl ter alld Ihe orgar,IJ(J i(,n'; that 
the Centl~ 1 r;J!ltrttcf t;. With. 

Pnor to workinq ,li C"I) ,n1Ull lty 
Fl.e~c l' Center, la n1 ,Il~ spent t J y~r:; 
well king i ll !jl ~ r'); ,i ll'lrJllil y 1111'I1tal 
ile.:t lth SYS II ~1I1 in 1'-'1,, 111<' . III " cI {i,I'i"" 
to l,rov icJ 1nO( J1flita ! serv i( I~" . Trim,il c 
served dS the Direc tor of '~e"lci l 
HealtlJ Serv,ces and mo' e I l!lt:'ll tly 
as ,II ", Ch i~r f)pe r~ ' ,ons r') fficel' rOt 
A,oosl (lQV Me,ni ", i Hedltll Ce"t~ 1. 

Tdll1dl a led t lie tI"ve IO !'lr " ~ 1\ 1 "" d 
tnl ph:: l1 lel!lblion ror sev/:'I .=t l I-: t:y 
inilwt,vec" including \!, Iec.troli lc 
hea lth r(: ,'o rdS, €'Ildenr. , bose::! 
practIceS, Iecovery rlI {)ne ls and 
1111 egrated 5"rvl ,'so 

- amali, f cf: lv;,'d ~f r'1,lste, ot 501..1 ,, 1 
Work 110,." the Universi ty vr New 
Ell glanci and ,, 8~c h f!J1) 1 of A rt~ ii l 

P"Ydl(J!"~Y Iroll ' thr, U'ilve,Sllj' " I 
Milll1" . She c r;mp le t~d ti ll" Heatth 
1.t'~der,l l l p D",v~ lo pm,~nj r OUise with 
t hp Ddl'llel Ha nl~y ( " nter f,)1 lie~ l t h 

LeMi2r, llIp " nl1 l 1! tn ut" fur CIVIl: 
Lea~l er~h IP In 201 l . 

Services. As a 
(linical Directorl 

she oversees the 
Psyc(lologi ca l 

Ser v;f~S DeparIITl€11l , liK: 
ACCOl '1tilbility [, Recovery Program, 
Cornmuni l:y Reach Center's Cris is 
ContlnuulTI , as well as all ] ustice­
relatec! servit es. Ad[Utionally, 
A igail i3 highly Invol ved in Crisis 
I ntervention Tra ining (CIT) progra m 
for loca l law enforcement. 

Beyond serving Commu nity Reach 
Center, Dr. Tucker serves on a vilriety 
of Adams Coullty behavioral health 
councils, boards and committees and 
is an Editorial Boerrd tlrember fO I the 
Journal of FJmily Violence, as well as 
t~e Journal of Chi ld and Adolescent 
Substance Abuse. She has published 
r.u merous j ourna l art icles, as well as 
book chapters, and regularly preser,ts 
on the rol? of cornmUi it y menial 
hea lth in forell ~.ics, crit ical inCident 
stress debriefing models and other 
police issues. 

Dr. Tucker recei ved both her Dr)ctlJr 
of Psycl'iology and her 11aster of 
Se ienc," in Clinical Psych ology fron', 
Nova Southeastern Universi ty. She 
completed her Bachelor of Arts in 
Psychology at Loyola College. 

Doctor Joseph 
Pastor serv s 
as Community 
Reach Center's 
Chief r;'edlcal 
OfAcer. p,s CMO, 
he is responsible 
for sup I-viSing 
all rn edlCal 

and nursing providers Wi th the aim 
to ensure all Com mun ity Reach 
Center clients receive appropriate 
evaluat'lon, diagnosis, tre~ tment , 

medical screen ings, and qualll:,! 
psychiatric services. 

Outside of Com m unity Reach Center, 
Dr. Pastor is li1e Assistant Clinical 
Professor of Psychiatry at Vanderbilt 
University Seil ool of Medicine in 
Nashville, Tennessee . He is also a 
member of the American Societ y 
of Professiona s in Patient Safety, 
a rnember of me AcadelllY or 
CorrectionDI Heil lth r rofC!ssionals, 
and a member of t ile Tennessee 
Cll ild and Adolescent psych iatry 
Society. He has extensive experience 
in academic, com muni ty and private 
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jail's and the cOlnln unlty. 

Dr. Pastor received his Doctor 
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Community Reach Center will provide the on site, comprehensive mental health care to all 
inmates booked into ACDF in accordance with all current and any future NCCHC accreditation 
standards for care. The retention rate for our Jail and Outpatient Justice Team in 2014 was 
75%. We believe a consistent workforce supports strong mental health care which is why 
we have a targeted employee retention program. Staffing to support that comprehensive 
care includes the following positions which are outlined in Attachment A; Four (4) Full Time 
Equivalent (FTE) Master's level behavioral health providers and one (1) part-time .5 FTE 
Psychiatry Provider for a total of 4.5 FTE. These 4.5 FTE staff will provide an average of 120 
hours per week of onsite, direct care mental health services and an average of 20 hours per 
week of onsite, direct psychiatric care. The average of 120 hours per week of clinical care and 
20 hours per week of psychiatric care allow us to often exceed those expectations, but also 
ensure that our staff receive quality supervision, mandatory training, continuing education, 
and have Department of Labor standards for time off to rejuvenate from the hard work they do 
every day. Onsite, direct care services will be provided seven days a week and 365 days a year 
during day shift; most predominately between hours of 8:00am and 6:00pm to support existing 
lockdown times of the jail. However, services, such as groups, may be provided in the evening if 
permitted by ACDF and our crisis services are available Twenty-four hours a day, seven days a 
week, three-hundred sixty-five days a year (24/7/365) . 

Part of providing comprehensive mental health care is integrating with re-entry services and 
Community Reach Center's leadership is fully committed to providing a seamless transition 
from the jail to the community. Our creative efforts have resulted in Community Reach Center 
providing services that are funded by alternate sources. There are several other positions 
(a total of 1.0 on-site Manager, 4.0 FTE for case managers and 3.0 FTE for master's level 
therapists) funded by other grants and contracts that Community Reach Center uses to support 
an overall structure for high quality mental health care at ACDF; see figure 1.1. To support thi~ 
organizational structure for on-site jail services, Community Reach Center has provided our 
agency organization chart as Attachment E, all of whom are locally working in Adams County. 
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Community Reach Center's demonstrated experience in providing jail -based mental health 
care integrated with medical contracts and re-entry services is performed with efficient work 
flow. Figure 1.1 outlines the flow of inmate-patient care from booking to release to community 
care. National and State standards as well as evidenced based practices inform all of our 
services from initial screen, to triage, assessment, individual and group therapy, and include 
discharge planning. Currently, Community Reach Center partners with the medical vendor on 
their identified screening tool used at booking with a Registered Nurse, which then based on 
low threshold criteria (e .g. inmate does not need to be high risk they can present only with 
low level or a history of mental health symptoms and still meet criteria for referral) are either 
directly admitted to the Infirmary or booked into the jail as standard operating procedure and 
referred to mental health. Our response time from that referral is based on acuity and will 
range from next day to within 14 calendar days. This process provides 24/7/365 screening 
of all inmates booked into the facility and rap id response for high risk situations. However, 
Community Reach Center is eager to work with any medical vendor to select a screening tool 
and process that best uses the strengths and skill set of both medical and mental health. 

Our triage process and initial clinical assessments meet NCCHC standards, are enhanced to 
include trauma-informed practices, and are designed to (1) evaluate & stabilize, (2) provide 
brief clinical & psychiatric care, and (3) mitigate risk. Community Reach Center staff receives 
advanced training on client rights, risk management, substance use disorders, working with 
veteran populations and cultural competency awareness training. With these advanced trainings 
and assessment tools that are available to staff, we can individually modify clinical assessments 
and the concurrent treatment plans to best meet the need of the inmate-patient. 

• Level of Supervision Inventory Revised (LSI-R) Simple Screening Instrument Revised (SSI-R) 
• Colorado Criminal Justice Mental Health Screen for Adults (CCJMHS-A), HELPS - The HELPS 

is a brief TBI screening tool that was designed to be used by professionals who are not 
TBI experts. "HELPS" is an acronym for the most important parts of screening: H = Hit in 
the head; E = Emergency room treatment; L = Loss of consciousness; P = Problems with 
concentration and memory; S = Sickness or other physical problems following injury. 
Post Traumatic Stress Disorder Checklist Revised (PCL-R) 

Community Reach Center joins Adams County in their value that mental health care is available 
to all inmate-patients and are proud to be a part of ACDF Kite system (inmate written request 
process) where any inmate can submit a direct request for services to mental health. Our response 
time to kites is also based on acuity and can range from next day to within 14 calendar days. 

FinallYt Com munity Reach Center acknowledges that mental health crisis cannot be predicted 
and will occur outside of onsite direct service hours. 

f' u, 
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Therefore, Community Reach Center will continue our practice to provide ACDF with 24/7/365 
crisis support that includes both phone access to a Crisis Manager, an on-call psychiatric 
provider as well as crisis therapist who can physically respond to ACDF and provide 
assessments, consultation and direct referrals as needed. In the past year, ACDF has reached 
out to Community Reach Center's afterhours crisis services a n average of three times per 
month . Most the calls have resulted in CRC completing a face to face crisis evaluation for an 
inmate being released who presented with high suicide or homicidal danger. 

Community Reach Center has over 50 years of providing unparalleled commitment to promoting 
excellence, professionalism and integrity within our community health care system. This 
commitment to staff excellence best serves our community and the inmate-patients at ACDF. 
Community Reach Center has a robust New Employee training and mandatory annual trainings 
outlined in Attachment F. Additionally, we welcome the supplemental and site-specific training 
provided by ACDF (as outline in request for proposal). Community Reach Center is familiar 
and in full agreement with the Personnel Background process, Clearance and Refusal rights of 
ACSO and all Security measures including right of inspection . The framework of New Employee 
training, mandatory annual trainings, supplemental ACDF trainings, and continuing education 
trainings have built and will maintain the backbone of integrity and quality for our staff. 

From that framework, the mental health staff working at ACDF have begun a practice 
transformation to hit two new targets of excellence: 

r I 	 Use of Moral Reconation Therapy (MRT) provided both within the jail and then 
continued in community at Community Reach Center. Four CRC therapists, whose role 
is to serve this special population, have completed a three day training in MRT and 
become certified in the curriculum. MRT is a form of treatment which has been shown 
through repeated studies to be more effective with the offender population than most 
other forms of treatment. 
Reduction in recidivism using best practices in information sharing and re-entry services. 
Community Reach Center's jail program is currently completing intakes for community 
based services while inmate-patients are detained, and then providing consumers with 
an appointment date to start services post-release from jail. If a consumer fails to attenD 
his or her scheduled appointment with Community Reach, the jail team will call them 
or their social supports to discuss why they did not attend the appointment and assist 
them in getting a new appointment scheduled. To reach our second target of excellence 
for recidivism reduction, we will learn from existing partnerships and successes in our 
community. In 2009, the CESE Program was developed with ACSO & CRe. Since the 
start of the program, the CESE Program has boasted a less than 10% recidivism rate for 
individuals who were in jail pre-CESE and engaged in treatment at Community Reach 
Center with Probation supervision. 

In 2013, Community Reach Center, as a subcontractor to Adams County was awarded the Office 
of Behavioral Health (OBH) Jail Based Behavioral Services (JBBS) contract and since that award 
date has served over (1043) individuals all of whom are targeted for community re-integration. 

In the fiscal years 2014 and 2015 Annual Report from OBH, it was acknowledged that 
Community Reach Center served more individuals than any other JBBS program in the state, 
including jails with larger average daily populations. In 2014, Community Reach Center, ACSO 
and many other criminal justice partners received SEARCH federal technical assistance to 
complete a Sequential Intercept Map of our local community's criminal justice system and its 
interface with behavioral health , This process was endorsed by the Substance Abuse Mental 
Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) GAINS Center as an evidenced informed way to 
integrate behavioral health and the criminal justice system, highlighted the need for more 
behavioral health services at the point of law enforcement contact, in jail and post-release 
reference. This supported Community Reach Center's existing collaboration with ACSO and 
eight other local law enforcement community's in the Adams County Crisis Intervention 
Team (CIT) training program. We know that when officers and deputies are trained in best 
practices for de-escalation we can impact the diversion from the criminal justice system and 
jails. However, since there are times when CIT skills cannot overcome criminal activity, the 
Sequential Intercept Mapping project validated the need for re-entry services embedded in 
jails since jails have become default institutions for mental health in the past decade due to 
deinstitutionalization, underfunding Community Mental Health Centers, and larger systemic 
issues including stigma and access to care (http://www,samhsa ,gov/gains-center) , 

http://www,samhsa
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The JBBS program initiated in 2013, the newly awarded (in 2014) Senate Bill 97 Program, and 
the recent (2015) National Council Learning Collaborative award to CRC & ACSO, all fiscally 
support case management services, brief therapy services, and community based services 
following nationally recognized re-entry practices including but not limited to; 
National Re -Entry Resource Center; 

• Supported by Council of State Governments 
• https ://csgjusticecenter.org/nrrc/ 
• Provides resources, trends, and webinars are nationally recognized practices to support 

re-entry and engagement in services post-release 
Colorado SSI/SSDI Outreach, Access, and Recovery (SOAR) Works Program 

• Supported by SAMHSA 
• http ://soarworks. prainc.com/states/colorado 
• Training has been provided to existing 	Community Reach Center JBBS and SB97 staff and 

supports benefits assessment and acquisition to ensure that inmate-patients who need to 
obta in or sustain Medicaid or other health insurance have qualified staff to support them . 

c ] ()l 

11 
Community Reach Center secures Job Descriptions for all employed staff and those personnel 
records are maintained by our Human Resources Director, available to County when needed. 
Job Descriptions include specific job duties and services which are outlined in Table 1.0 and 
Table 1.1 below; all of which are requirements of staffing working at ACDF and meet or exceed 
NCCHC accreditation standards. A staffing chart demonstrating capacity to meet these specific 
services including 24/7/365 coverage for crisis is included as Attachment G. Attachment E 
also includes brief biographical summaries of leadership members at Community Reach Center 
supporting this contract. 

Dailv Weeklv 
Twice 
a week 

Available 
as Needed 

Available 
24/7/365 

Su icide Watch x 

Infirmary Rounds x 

Juvenile 8. Admin. 

Segregation 
Services 

x 

Services for 
Pregnant Women 

)( 

Group Therapy, 
Brief Individual 

therapy, Discharge 
planning 8. Ca e 

Management 
Services 

x 

Triage 8. respond 
to Kites 8. Ment,,1 

Health Evaluations 
x 

Psychiatric 
Evaluations 8. 

Services 
x 

Crisis Evaluat ion 
and Psychiatric 

Consult 
x 
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T, ble 1 0 pecific Se'"V1 es Provided 

Dailv Weekly Monthly Quarterly 

Trainings for 
ACDF staff and/ 

or medical 
vendor staff on 
mental health 
and/or suicide 
prevention best 

practices 

x 

Clinical 
Supervision for 
a II therapists, 
case manager 
and supervisor 

x 

Clinical 
Supervision for 

Psychiatrist 
x 

Treatment Team 
Meetings 

x 

Infirmary 
Rounds/Staffings 

with Medical 
Vendor 

x 

Classification 
Review Board 
Participation 

I 

x 

Administrative 
Review Board 
Pa rticipation 

x 

T blf' .1 uppor I I lIenl Lt,\. It. _ 
All services provided by Community Reach Center are documented prior to the end of shift 
which supports our capacity to provide statistical information at the request of Adams County. 
Documentation of all services are outlined in Table 1.2 below. The capacity to continue to use 
our own electronic health record for JBBS, SB97 and National Council services has and will 
support ongOing ability to admit an inmate-patient directly to Community Reach Center, while 
still in detention, stratifying the likelihood that individuals will attend their next scheduled 
appointment post-release rather than an open-ended walk-in service/referral. This promotes 
continuity of care post-release as well as engagement. Community Reach Center strives 
for excellence in technology and data sharing and welcomes a future collaboration with any 
medical vendor to assess the capacity to share information, improve continuity of care and 
reduce redundant documentation practices. We are currently sharing data with ACDF's Jail 
Management System (JMS) and would be open to looking at similar models of data sharing with 
the awarded medical vendor. 
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T ble 1.2 DoclImen ation of Sel vices 

Crisis Evaluations for 

post-release inmate 


patients 


Crisis or Psychiatric 

Consult Calls for 

detained inmate 


patients 


Suicide Watch 

& all related 


docu mentation 


Mental Health 

Evaluations and Kite 


Responses 


Psychiatric: 

Evaluations and 


all related services 

including Prescriptive 


x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

Staffings with ACDF 

staff Or Medical 


Vendor on detained 


inmate patients 


Staffings with 

referral agencies or 

community partners 


specific: to post-

release re-entry 


needs 


Group and Individual 


Therapy 


Case Management 

and Discharge 


Planning specific to 

re-entry 


Consent, Disclosure 

and Release of 


Information Forms 


.x 

x 

x 

)C 

x 

x 

x 

*EHR: Electronic Health Record 
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Psychiatric care at Community Reach Center is grounded in national best practices and 
extended to all inmate patients at ACDF. In attachment H, you will find our Procedure for ACDF 
Integration of Psychiatric care and coverage. We offer 24/7/365 access to on-call psychiatric 
consultation as well as 20 hours per week of direct psychiatric care to inmate patients. To 
support patient care and cost efficient practices, all referrals to psychiatry are first evaluated 
by our mental health therapists and triaged based on clinical acuity, medical necessity, and 
presenting problem. Based on those three risk pools, we can stratify access to psychiatric care 
same day, next day, within a week or within a month, but always within NCCHC standards. 
We support use of a formulary and will comply with medical vendor formulary both in our 
prescriptive practice as well as by documenting in medical vendor EHR. 

Part of our innovative and evidenced practice includes following the SAMHSA-informed Four 
Quadrant Model, which provides services and prescriptive care appropriate to medical necessity, 
at a more cost effective dollar amount. (http://www.integration.samhsa.gov/resource/four­
quadrant-model). In this mode of care, which we would be happy to adapt with any medical 
vendor for specialized correction care at ACDF, patients with low level acuity and requiring 
continuation of formulary medications are seen by medical providers at a fraction of the cost, 
allowing the higher acuity individuals, who would be starting psychotropic or individuals requiring 
a change in psychotropic medications to be seen by specialized psychiatric providers. In addition 
to following national best practices, Community Reach Center collaborates at the State level 
by being an active participant, as designated by the Chief of ACDF, on the State Medication 
Consistency Workgroup for over two years. As a member of that workgroup, we are aware that 
Colorado Department of Corrections and Colorado Mental Health Institutes have created a State­
wide Formulary that they wish to offer and integrate with Colorado Jails. Regardless of ACDF's 
position on a Statewide Formulary, we will continue to bring that continuity of care through 
information sharing and collaboration to ACDF. Direct regular supervision of prescriptive practice 
is provided by Community Reach Center's Cfvl0, a correctional care health professional (CCHP) 
who has national expertise in jail-based health care. 

Community Reach Center is committed to continuing our provision of 24/7/365 crisis response 
to ACDF should a critical incident emerge after hours (e.g. an inmate on suicide watch is 
released overnight). In addition to our seven years of experiencing in providing this to ACDF, 
Community Reach Center has been the primary Medicaid provider of crisis services serving 
all Adams County hospitals with 24/7/365 crisis evaluation response for over 25 years. This 
community connection enhances our capacity to not only provide the crisis evaluation to the 
jail , but also support hospital disposition and step-down care after that initial assessment and 
long after release from jail. 

Community Reach Center is also a leader in the state for suicide prevention. Community 
Reach Center has a SUicide Prevention Committee including members of the Jail team and 
other Center clinical staff. Our Suicide Prevention Committee has attended national, SAMHSA 
approved training, supports the Colorado State Suicide Prevention workgroup, and is a local 
provider of the Statewide Crisis System launched in 2014. Our Crisis Services include three 
specific teams all of which are available 24/7/365 for all Coloradans regardless of payer source 
(See Attachment J); (1) Crisis Stabilization Unit which is a bed-based service, (2) Mobile 
Crisis Team who respond to ACDF when needed, and (3) Walk-in Crisis clinic available without 
appointment for crisis assessment and services. Therefore, our 24/7/365 crisis services 
provided to ACDF continue after that initial assessment and can offer hospital step down care, 
crisis stabilization beds, and mobile crisis team follow up support. 

http://www.integration.samhsa.gov/resource/four
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We extend the best practices of our Suicide Prevention Committee into ACDF by being an active 
member of ACDF's Critical Incident Review Team (CIRT). On CIRT, Community Reach Center 
serves both as the mental health and suicide prevention expert, but is also poised to make 
rapid continuous quality improvements both internally with our Jail Team and externally with 
our Crisis and outpatient care teams. For example, we partnered with CIRT and ACDF to create 
Jail Inmate Booking flyer aimed to increase awareness of mental health services in the jail and 
provide suicide prevention education. Additionally, we support training for all new jail deputies, 
vendors and other staff on suicide prevention best practices. 

1 tr') t 
Community Reach Center agrees to the following terms of the contract: 
The term shall be from March 1, 2016 through December 31,2016 with two (2) one-year 
renewals . The contract may be evaluated at any time during this period, at terms and 
conditions mutually agreeable. The following provisions shall apply: 

• Providing satisfactory service is given . 
• Providing the Board of County Commissioners approves funding. 
• The County may terminate the contract at any time by giving written notice . 

Community Reach Center meets and/or exceeds the following minimum qualifications 
numbered below in addition to assuring our enthusiastic willingness and ability to comply with 
the scope of contract, mandatory requirements, specifications and program requirements, and 
in particular, the most current Standards for Health services in Jails, established by the National 
Commission on Correctional Health Care. 

Requirement: The Contractor must be organized for the purpose of providing 
mental health care services, and have previous experience with proven 
effectiveness in administering correctional mental health care programs. 

Response: Community Reach Center is a top tier integrated health center with 
over 50 years of experience in the provision of mental health and integrated 
healthcare. Community Reach Center has been the mental health provider 
within the Adams County Detention Facility since 2008 and has demonstrated 
effectiveness in providing mental health services to those within the 
correctional setting. 

Requirement: The Contractor must have at least five (5) continuous years of 
corporate experience in providing mental health care services at correctional facilities. 

Response: Community Reach Center has been the provider of mental health 
services at Adams County Detention Facility since August of 2008. 

Requirement: The Contractor must carry professional liability insurance in minimum 
amounts of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and Two Million 
Dollars ($2,000,000.00) in the aggregate annually. The Contractor must carry 
separate liability insurance covering bodily injury, personal injury and property 
damage in the amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000.000.00) combined single limit. 

Response: Community Reach Center carries professional liability insurance 
through Mental Health Risk Retention Group . Please see Attachment 
D for the general insurance certification. 

http:1,000.000.00
http:2,000,000.00
http:1,000,000.00


COnl lTlunit \ Re3ch Cente r Response to Ada ms COU Jlt~ Requ est for Propo 'aJ 201.5.348 

Requirement: The Contractor must have demonstrated its experience and the 
quality of its care by having obtained the accreditation of the National Commission 
on Correctional Health Care (NCCHC) 

Response: Community Reach Center has demonstrated experience in meeting 
NCCHC, accreditation standards as evidenced by ACDF approval in past two 
audits neither of which resulted in any corrective action for mental health. 

Requirement: The Contractor must demonstrate its ability to provide a mental health 
care system specifically for the Adams County Detention Facility. It must demonstrate 
that it has the ability for a thirty (30) day start-up, that it has a proven system of 
recruiting staff, and that it has an adequate support staff in its central office capable of 
competently supervising and monitoring its operation in Adams County. 

Response: As an established mental health center for over 50 years, Community 
Reach Center has the ability to provide a quality evidenced based mental health 
care system specifically to the ACDF. Community Reach Center's Human Resources 
Department has two dedicated recruiting staff members to ensure timely recruitment 
of open positions within all programs including the mental health staff serving the 
ACDF. Community Reach Center's Human Resources utilizes an applicant tracking 
system and onboarding process that streamlines the receipt of applicants and timely 
onboarding. In addition, the Agency has over 50 support staff, in multiple disciplines 
capable of monitoring and overseeing the operations in Adams County. 

Requirement: The Contractor must demonstrate the ability to help address 
recidivism by connecting inmates with follow up local mental health care once they 
leave the Adams County Detention Facility. 

Response: Community Reach Center will continue to offer th is post-release service 
to all inmate-patients leaving ACDF. Community Reach Center has partnered 
with the local CESE Board to connect inmate-patients to this outpatient program 
resulting in less than 10% recidivism rate back to ACDF for all CESE graduates. 

Requirement: Community Reach Center will provide Contract Administrator who is 
local and will be in service to ACDF for the duration of the contract . 

Response: Community Reach Center 

Contract Administrator: Abigail Tucker, Psy.D. 

8931 Huron Street, Thornton CO 80260 

303-853-3703 a. tucker@communityreachcenter.org 


Requirement: Community Reach Center has obtained an accreditation of the 
National Commission on Correctional Health Care at the following location: 

Response: Adams County Detention Facility 

150 N. 19th Avenue 

Brighton, CO 80601 

303-853-3703 

Contract Administrator: Abigail Tucker, Psy.D. 


Requirement: All proposals must list by name, address, phone and Contract 
Administrator all correctional institutions where proposer has terminated services, 
been terminated for any reason or lost a rebid as the incumbent. 

Response: Not Applicable . 

mailto:tucker@communityreachcenter.org
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Requirement: All proposals must include any legal action against the company or 
corporate principals within the company within the past 48 months must be disclosed 

Response: Not Applicable. 

Requirement: All Proposals must include staff turnover ratios and layoffs, 
both executive and line, within the past 48 months must be provided as part of 
Proposers response . 

• In 2014, Community Reach Center's staff turnover percentage was 28.77% . 
• From 2014 to date the staff turnover percentage for Jail and Justice teams was 27.7% 
• As of October of 2015, the overall agency staff turnover percentage is 25% 

for 2015 . 

Requirement: All proposals must contain a letter of intent from an insurance 
company authorized to do business in the State of Colorado stating its willingness 
to insure the proposer pursuant to the terms of the contract. 

Response : See Attachment K. 

ReqUIrement: All proposals must include audited financial statements for the 
most recent fiscal year, and year before that, supporting the Proposers financial 
capability to undertake and complete the performance of the contract. 

Response: See Attachment L. 

Requirement: All proposals must contain pricing for the first, second and third 
year of the contract. 

Response: See Attachment A. 

Requirement: All proposals must contain a staffing chart showing staffing of 
facility for 24/7 coverage. 

Response: See Attachment G. 
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At ach 'nl 

PROPOSAL PRICE FORM 

\11 hthol' 1l'<Itl'l'iul ... , '>l'ni 'I.''' <JnLll'qllipl11enllll'l'l'''''i1r:-· for thc COJllpldiltn of 

the" 01'1. dC"'l'I'iht'd in lhi .. doculllent and a.. pl'Upo .... l'<.1 b) the hido 'I''' ill he 

cumpleted 1"411' lhl' IlIlIIp .... UIll a ll1(lt 111 \ of ___ ---'-,_3_9_6....:.,_5__7_5_ _ _ dollaI'''' 

(Enter the total base proposal amount for first year. 

397,9861. 	 * Total cost of first year contract) $ 

Additional cost/refund per inmate/per day when the average daily population is: 

a. Over 1200 	 $ ~an1 

Samb. Under 1000 	 $ 

491,9162. 	 Total cost of second year contract $ 

(January 1, 2017-December 31,2017) 


506 	6733. 	 Total cost of third year contract $ -	 - - --'---- ­
(January 1, 2018-December 31,2018) 

A. 	Provide explanation of the formula for inflationary increase for the two subsequent 
year renewals, if any. - A 3% increase for Yr2 and Yr3. 

B. 	*Also provide a breakdown of the lump sum price by line item descriptions 
and amounts (e .g.staffing, consu lting/specialty care, inpatient hospital care, 
pharmaceuticals, hospital emergency care costs, supplies, mise. expenses, general 
administrative and operating costs, etc.) The total for the line items should be the 
same as the stated lump sum base price. - See Attached detailed budget. 
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Attachm n A PlOP dl I e 01111 

I~R 
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS JAIL SERVICES 2143 

10 Months 

CY16 CV17 CY18 
..

1 1 
Mise Con rans/G lants 5397,986 549 1, 916 $506,673 

TOTAL REVENUE $397,986 $491,9 16 $506,673 

1 . 

COMPENSATION 

Salarres 5246,904 5305, 173 53] 4,329 

Fringe $64 , 195 $7':1,3'15 581,725 

TOTAL COMPENSATION $311,099 $384,519 $396,054 

OPERATING 

Security Bond 

Books & Sub::.cnp ions 

Office Supplies 

Telepllolle 

Travel 

M~als & Meelii1g Supplies 

$4,000 

5100 

5400 

5650 

$L,OOO 

$140 

$4 ,500 

$JOO 

$400 

5780 

$2,400 

$140 

S4 ,500 


SlOO 

5400 

s780 

$2,400 

$140 

TOTAL OPERATING $7,290 $8,320 $8,320 

TOTAL DIRECT EXPENSES $318, 389 $ 392,839 $404, 374 

Adlnillistrdlive Fr-:>es 5/9,597 598,2 10 $10],094 

In Kind 

TOTAL EXPENSES $397,986 $491,048 $505 ,468 

NET EXCESS(OEFICIT) $0 $867 

Job Titl e: Sa lary Range 
Master's Level Behavioral Health Providers - Licensed 47,000-51,000 
Master's Level Behavioral Health Providers - Unlicensed 40,000-43,000 
Psychiatry Provider - Nurse Practitioner (.50 FTE) 86,000-90,000 

Benefits 
FICA, Health Insurance, Dental Insurance, Life Insurance, STD Insurance, LTD Insurance, 401K, 
Workers Compensation, Malpractice Insurance 
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lI m nt B PI P I Fa n / ~ let ment 

ADAMS CO UNTY, COLORADO 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE INMATE 

MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
PROPOSAL FORM 

VE 'DOR''; S'J \n :i\lENT 
I have read and fully understand all the special conditions herein set forth in the foregoing 
paragraphs, and by my signature set forth hereunder, I hereby agree to comply with all said 
special conditions as stated or implied . In consideration of the above statements, the following 
proposal is hereby submitted. ' 

\\ I , J'IIE l 'j om H.DS1(iNI.D IIFREBY \l h.l\()",I.EJ)(iL RECEIPTor 

Addenda # ___ Addenda # _ _ _ Addenda # ___ 

If None, Please write NONE. 

ADDRESS SIGNATURE 

Tll t\ (/ l!c.; i'I / Ad(t ll 'l'.;, (I·U 
CITY, COUNTY, STATE PRINTED SIGNATURE 

TELEPHONE NUMBER TITLE 

(Seal - If Bid is by a Corporation) 
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A l (h 'n on I clOr ~ er tl I n Ion of Compliance 

C():\'TH \(,TOR'S (,ERJ I FI(, \TJOI\: OF ('O\lPUi\N('E 
Pursuant to Colorado Revised Statute, § 8-17.5-101, et.seq., as amended 5/13/08, as 
a prerequisite to entering into a contract for services with Adams County, Colorado, the 
undersigned Contractor hereby certifies that at the time of this certification, Contractor 
does not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien who will perform work under the 
attached contract for services and that the Contractor will participate in the E-Verify Program 
or Department program, as those terms are defined in C.R.5. § 8-17.5-101, et. seq. in order 
to confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment to 
perform work under the attached contract for services. 

('0NTIV\('TO R: 

Company Name Date 

Signature 

Title 

Note: Registration for the E-Verify Program can be completed at: https://www.vis-dhs.com\ 
employerregistration. It is recommended that employers review the sample "memorandum of 
understanding" available at the website prior to registering 

http:https://www.vis-dhs.com


A 	 , o e NERA, llA9 11. rTY 
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Attachm - Insur nc 

CAlE (MMlOOfYYYYI

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY rNSURANCE 6/23/2015 
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MAnER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If till! c:ert.!rlcate holdor Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED. the pollcy(los) must be o·ndors&d. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subJoct to 
the terms. and condltlollS of tttc} policy. cortaln policies may ntqulro an ondorsem()nt. A statomont on this certificate docs not confer rights to the 
cortlflcata holder In Rau of such endorsement sl. 

PROaUCER NAME~Gceglia([L____ 

PHCsLti:.3.Q3.Z44.1341 
1rM------- ­
Aic~3.Q3~Q6. 5!l__ Henry Ham Agency 

645 E Evans Ave. 
Denver CO 80250 A~J~~~h~oryba~~c~Qm~_________________' _ ________f 

COMMU-1 
Community Reach Center Systems Inc. 
1850 Egbert SI 
Brighton CO 80601 

;!~SUREAI91 4 FI'OIIOINO COVERAGE ~--
INSIJRfOR /). Mentall:lealtl1 Ris&.EetentiQn.-...______-+__ 
INSURER B :PbiladelP.biaJDsuraDcP~Compaoy_ _ _ __ 
INSURER C 

Icl~N~SU~R~E~R~O~: ____________ 

~~- -------- ---------
INsunERF : 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 119367806 REVIS!ON NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT Tli E POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED NOTIMTHSTA~mING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDmON OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT IIVITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAiMS 

POLtC Y NUMBER U\\11S 

CCl OO0 2050 51 .000.000 

A 

GEtn AGGREGATE lirA" Al'F'lIES PE.R 

- ; POLICY n PilCl- Loe 

~TOII.OB'LE l!ABItITY 

~ 
A!WAUTO 
AU OWNED 8SCHEDULED 
AUTOS A.UlOS 

, HIRED AUTOS i ~~~'IR'w 
. I ! 

OCCUR 

WORl<ERS COMFENS4nmJ 
..NO EL1PlOYERS' L1AIJtUT'i V I N 
ANY PRO?P.TETOA':PAAT t'E.RJEXECIJ7tVE 0 
OFFI CF.~EMeER EXCLUDE.!)? 
(M'''dUQr)' In Nfll 

~$t~;mr~~ Oftt~PEAAnous bAlew 

! 
Professional Liab 
Claims M.de Form 

PHPK 13.5090) 

NIA 

ICCLOOO2060 

, 7111201S , 7/ 112016 

71 1/2015 11112016 

IJOO.OOO 

15000 

r.PERSOllAL & ADV INJURY S1.000.000 ____ _ 

GEN~RALAGGREGATE ~,OOO. OOO 

, PROQUClS· COMPIOP AGG $3000 000 _ 
• I 

! 1000 000 

ijOOlLYll>lJURY [po,.coden'I S 

PROPERTY DA'i:iAGE 
'~'.~d~.m~jL-______-+_____________ 

EACH OCCURREHCE 

Eael1 Claim 
,AQg'egala 

$1 .000,000 
$3.000.000 

oe5~lPnou OF OP~R"noU~ IlOC f:. T'l Or.s I VE HICL..ES tAn" c.h ACOR D 101. A d4It1o.MJI Ron't.rkl Sch.dw.le.. if me r" .ptt:5 Ir. ~quJred) 

CERTIfICATE HOLDER 

To Whom It May Concern 

I 

ACORD 25 (2010105) 

CANCeLLATION 

SHOULD A.NY OF THE ABOVE OESCRIBED POlICIES Be CANCEllED eEFORE 
THE EXPlRA110N ClATE lWEREOr-. No nCE Will BE OEl.lVEREO IN 
~CCOROANCE WITH THE POI.ICY PROVISIONS. 

I 
@ 1988·2010 ACORD CORI'ORATION. All rights r&Served. 

The ACORD name and logo are regl~tered marks af ACORD 
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All hment er Or 
1011 

E onizatiol1 Chat t 
an Bnef BI hip Staff 

fjlJ ersee:ng service 
d~live, y, service 
support systems and 
all int.;rnal operations. 
Additionally, she 

inillales, as weI! ~s implements, [he 
Cenl er's strategic pia I dnri f"CllitilLs 
communIcation between Coml11unltv 
Reach Center and llie organizations that 
t ile Cenl~ (n I Jtr~r:ts \'!i ··1t. 

Pnor to work ing at Community 
Reach Center, Tamal a spen t 21 years 
working il1 the commun,l y mental 
Ilealtll system in l'1alne. In addition 
to providing dinical services, Tamara 
served as lhe Di rector of tltental 
Health Se ices and more recently 
as th'? Chief Operations Officer for 
Aroostook "'len tal "lealt l1 Cen ter. 

Tamara led th ':! development and 
impi'.'!mentat lon for severa l k<;y 
in itiatives, including electronic 
health rewrds, evidence· based 
practices, recovery models and 
integrated serv ices. 

Tamara received a ~la5ter of SOCIal 
Work from the Universit y of New 
Eng'l;tIl d a d a Bachelor of Ar ts in 
Psychology from tle Unlversd.y of 
"'aine. She completed the Health 

adersh!p Deve!()pment course with 
" ,e Daniel Hanley CE:nt~ r for Heal t.h 
Leadership ancllnst itui:e (or Civic 
Leadersl11p in 2.011. 

Inten sive 
Services. As a 
Clin ical Director, 
she oversees the 
Psychological 

Services Departlllent, the 
Accountability & Recovery Program, 
Community Re"ch Center's Cris is 
Continuum, as well as all j llst ice­
rela ted services. Addltionaily, 
Abigail is highly involved in Crisis 
Intervention Training (CIT) program 
for loca l law enforcement. 

Beyond serving Community Reacil 
Center, Dr. Tucker serves on a variety 
of Ad ams County behaVioral health 
councils, boards and committees and 
is an Editorial Board I'~ember for the 
Journal of Family Violence, as well as 
the Journal of Child and Adolescent 
Substance Abuse. She has published 
numerous journal articles, as well as 
book chapters, and reg ulurly presents 
on the role of community mental 
health in forensics , critlCai incident 
stress debriefing models and other 
police Issues. 

Dr. Tucker received both her Doctor 
of PsYC110logy and her 1>1asler of 
Science in Clinical Psychology from 
Nova Southeastern UniverSity. She 
completed her Bachelor of Arts in 
Psychology at Loyola College. 

Doctor Josepl1 
Pastor serves 
as Comm un ity 
Reach Center's 
Chief rl,edical 
Offi cer. , 5 C O, 
11€ is responsible 
for supervi sing 
all medical 

and nursing providers w.th the aim 
to ensure all CommlJmly Rea h 
Center clients receiVe ilPpropriale 
evaluation, diagnosis, treatment, 
medical screenings, and Quality 
psychiatric serv ices. 

Outs ide of Community Reactl C n er, 
Dr. Pasto r IS tile Assistant Clinical 
Professor of Psychiatry at Vanderbi lt 
University School of MediCi ne in 
Nashville, Tennessee. He is also a 
member of the American SOCiety 
of Profess ionals In Patient Safety, 
a member of the Academy of 
Correctional Health Professionals, 
and a member of the Tennessee 
Child and Adol escent Psychiatry 
SOCiety. He has extensive experience 
in academic, community and private 
sedor hea lth care systems and 
consults internat ionally on in tegrated 
ilealth cal'e and suiCide preven tIOn in 
jail's and the commlJnity. 

Dr. Pastor received his Doctor 
of Medicine from the Ohio S te 
University College of 1'1edicine and his 
Bachelor of Arts from Hiram College 
in Ohio. 

Adult and chll cl psychiatrist, certl ed 
correctional health professional. 

counselor 111 

Denver, Colorado. 
Sik IS the 
Supervi~(l r of 
Jill1-ervices fo r 

Conlmunily Reach Cenler overseeing 
the J ~i ! Thera py 1',,'og r(1111 located 
dt the Adilms county ],, ;1. Tile 
Jail TI,,,,mpy progrom prOVides 
menial 11 ealth assessment dnd 
triage, medication Inanayernent, 
and t ransitional ,(erVlCeS to tlo ose 
II1cil rcera ted 'n t l]e Acl0 :"115 C.oun ly JJil. 

Emil y grew up in Gru nt! P"pids, 
Mich igan dnd completed her 
undergr~d u " t e educ~ tion at Calvill 
CollerJe in Grand Ri'p105. SI e then 
moved to Denver tu pursuing 
ed lJca tiol1 and clinical tr.'linillg . 
Eill ol y grClduated from 1.1112 Unlv~r51!. y 

of l 'erover wl tll a l"1A in For~nslc 

Psycl·Io log y. She has experience. 
With 01 tpatlent fu rensic t.ilerapy 
and assessn lent, cos{, manayement 
in Community Correct, ons, uiSl ~ 
assessment, "n11 a,sessmel, l "nd 
treotment witl1 in tt l': Jail sel.t iny. Sile: 
is ;, pres~nte( Coil 11·,,~nl. a l health and 
substanc e abuse [0 1 crimm,,1 jllsti r.e 
emldnyees at tlt e Ad~m '0I1n l'{ 
Sheriff's depil rtIl1~ 1It. En'li!y olso Si ts 
on the Adams COlln~y Con1rn UI11ty 
Currectlons Screl?ning Committee 
which reviews clffenders for the 
""Proll' iat~ 1 '"S5 of pl ilcement Within 
Coml11uni ty Con·€:ltlons. 

http:11�,,~nl.al
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AU c.hm nt F - C Olillunit R ( I C nt New Employee 
and Annu II l ff TI Blning R quit mE"nt' 

1. I'UI·,H'''C 
The Training Plan is designed to support the mission and vision of Community Reach Center 
as it pertains to required training to personnel, persons served, and stakeholders. 

II. (;uidillg Prin{'iple., 
Community Reach Center is committed to making reasonable efforts to provide 

comprehensive training to personnel, consumers, and community partners and 

stakeholders. The Center's Training Plan is a sum of all efforts and activities that are 
directed toward the provision of quality training that aligns with the Center's mission, 
values, and priorities and fosters initial onboarding core competencies for both clinical and 
nonclinical staff and ongoing personnel training requirements. 

Community Reach Center believes that by fostering a trauma-informed culture for both 
those we serve, personnel, and stakeholders speaks to our core values of safety, excellence, 
diversity, compassion, and good stewardship. Community Reach Center also champions 
a culture of organizational trust that includes fundamental pillars of clarity, compassion, 
character, competency, commitment, connection, contribution, and consistency. 

The Training Plan defines how training and education offered at the Center within the 
Center's cultural context will be identified, prioritized, and managed. It outlines how training 
activities will be performed, recorded, and monitored. 

Ill. Coato.; and ()hjccli\,l!~ 
a. 	 To conduct relevant and responsive training and education in a rapidly changing 

environment, within the context of the Center's purpose, sphere of influence, and 
relative to the mission, values, and priorities of the Center. 

b. 	 Provide New Employee Orientation bi-monthly and ongoing required trainings 
throughout the year to both clinical and non-clinical personnel that align with the 
Center's mission, values, and priorities. 

c. 	 Provide ongoing required trainings to help support clinical personnel needs to maintain 
clinical licensure and continuing education credits for approval by the Department of 
Regulatory Agencies. 

d. 	 Assess the needs of each individual program annually to support team specific training 
goals and objectives. 

e. 	 In addition to the Central Training Plan the Training Work Plan is available on 
SharePoint which provides a comprehensive list of all trainings offered throughout 
the year. 

IV. Required l'erSnllJlcl Tmining: 
a. 	 All Staff: 

i. 	Exploring Cultural Awareness, Sensitivity, and Competence 
ii. 	 Corporate Compliance 

iii. 	Client Rights 
iv. 	 Sexual Harassment for Employees 
v. 	 Drug Free Workplace 

vi. 	 HIPAA: An Introduction 
vii . OSHA-Bloodborne Pathogens 
viii. Recovery Oriented Mental Health (non-clinical staff) 

ix. 	 MANDT Levell 
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b. Clinical Staff: 
i. Risk Management & Prevention/Overview of 27-65 

ii. Clinical Documentation and Continuity of Car 
iii. HIPAA: Red Flags Rule Out 
iv. Ethics IV Part A Boundaries 
v. Managing Stress, Part 1 

vi. Managing Stress, Part II 
vii. Billing and Coding 
viii. TIER 

ix. Introduction to Trauma Informed Care 
x. QMAP (Residential) 

xi. Updates to Medication Policies and Procedures (Residential) 
xii . Substance Abuse 101 (School Based Teams) 
xiii . DSM-V Part 1 
xiv. DSM-V Part 2 
xv. Counseling on Lethal Means 

xvi. Intellectual/Developmental Disabilities (CSU) 
xvii. Motivational Interviewing (CSU) 
xviii. Solution Focused Brief Therapy (CSU) 
xix. MANDT Level 2 (Crisis Teams and Residential) 
xx. MANDT Level 3 (Day Treatment) 

c. Management 
i. New Employee Manager Orientation 

1. Human Resources 
2. Management Skills 
3. Finance 
4. Clinical Programs 
5. Quality Assurance and Compliance 
6. Information Technology Systems 

d. Board Members 
i. Corporate Compliance 

ii. HIPAA : An Introduction 
e. Telehealth Providers 

i. Corporate Complia nce 
ii. HIPPA: An Introduction 
iii. Sexual Harassment for Employees 
iv. Drug Free Workplace 
v. HIPPA-Red Flags Rule 

\ -. e\\ EmJllo~e' Orientation 
a. Human Resources Overview 
b. Operations Overview 
c. Clinical Overview 
d. Corporate Compliance 
e. Introduction to Trust Edge 
f. Introduction to Tra uma-Informed Care 
g . Introduction to Feedback Informed Treatment 
h. Introduction to Integrated Care 
i. Information and Technology Overview 
j. Business Services Overview 
k. Med Services Overview 
I. Quality Assurance & Compliance 
m. Client Rights 
n. Clinical Documentation 
o. Risk Management 
p. 27-65 Certification 
q. TIER Navigation & Practice 
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Offsite 

Onsite 
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Attc chm Ill. lilt 	 ychltJ IIC Me & Cove,age 

In addition to Infirmary Rounds and Suicide Rounds, Community Reach Center psychiatric 
provider will be responsible to provide initial and follow-up diagnostic interviews on referred 
clients and medication monitoring for clients prescribed medication. 

PI' '''<''I'iflli(/Il~: 
Continuing Prescriptions: The following medications which have been ordered by an outside 
Contractor including Inmates' medical doctor, emergency room consultant, outside psychiatrist, 
etc. may be approved for inmates when the following conditions exist: 

1. Medications are on Medical Community Reach Center formulary 
2. 	Medications have been confirmed by outside source 

New inmates admitted to ACDF who are on verified psychiatric medication should be continued 
on the current medication(s) until seen by the psychiatrist or other staff physician for medication 
renewal (within 14 days of admission to facility/ACDF) by Community Reach Center nursing staff. 
Notification should immediately be sent to mental health staff so that inmate can be scheduled 
with psychiatrist within 14 days. 

For clients discharging from jail , prescriptions can be written or either 30 days or 3 days . 
• 	 30 day prescriptions can be written for clients who are open to Community Reach 

Center or those who have psychiatric/mental health services planned upon release . It is 
important that such individuals have appointments made and are psychiatrically stable 
upon release. They should be working closely with case management to ensure continuity 
of care. 

• 	 3 day prescriptions can be written for individuals who do not have services planned upon 
release and/or are not open consumers of Community Reach Center. 

FOJ"]l1ulill,)': Community Reach Center will remain in compliance with ACDF formulary. 

Documentation: In addition to completing initial diagnostic evaluations and medication 
management notation psychiatrist will complete additional, as needed, Community Reach 
Center medical paperwork including but not limited to Non-Formulary Request Forms, Suicide 
Watch Discharge Forms, etc. Psychiatrists will follow a "SOAP-E" note format. 

p~~ chiatrh: ( · ri~i., Situiltioll~: include but are not limited to the following . A crisis 
situation not on th is list should be collaboratively managed with required contact to Community 
Reach Center Manager. 

• 	 Inmate becomes substantially dangerous to self or others and on-site procedures (e.g. 
Suicide Watch, PRN medications, CRB review, etc.) have been exhausted and continue to 
be in effective. 

• 	 Inmate is housed in jail on psychotropic medications and either reports or appears to be 
either intoxicated or withdrawing from illegal substances and/or alcohol 

• 	 Inmate reports dangerous side effects to prescribed psychotrop ic medication 

()lltraclo£' P'iychialric Pro 'l'dur ... : 
• 	 During scheduled on-site hours: all Psychiatric Cris is Situations to be managed by on-site 

psychiatric provider. 
• 	 During unscheduled off-business hours (all other times) contact will be Crisis : On-call 

clinician will consult with on-call psychiatric provider. 
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Atta hill nt J [nt glction "I H Ith risis Managemen 

l'i..,i.., Sen ice ... 
• 	 Community Reach Center will provide a mental health professional trained to assess for 

the necessity of an M-l hold, 24/7/365 with a response time of not more than 3 hours . 
• 	 Community Reach Center will provide assessment for the necessity of an M-l hold for 

any inmate within the jail; the inmate does not need to be an open consumer with 
Community Reach to receive crisis services. 

• 	 Mobile Crisis Team (MCT) of Community Reach will be available on weekends, holidays, 
and afterhours - otherwise crises should be managed (including institution of involuntary 
certification) by on-site Community Reach Center Jail Clinicians. ACDF staff will be 
provided with Community Reach Center MCT contact information. 

• 	 In the event that the afterhours crisis service is needed Community Reach Center 
MCT clinicians will be allowed functional access into the facility in order to conduct the 
necessary face-to-face consult 

• 	 ACDF wi ll provide transportation and coordinate for any person seen by afterhours 
Community Reach Center Emergency Services if transportation is necessary. 

• 	 Community Reach Center will follow standard protocol to address the crisis but will not 
be responsible for placing a person in crisis that is a jail client into a psychiatric facility 
and will default to the allocated 275 facility Contractor for that consumer/jail cl ient. 

('ri~is Situations! include but are not limited to the following . A crisis situation not on this list 
should be collaboratively managed with required contact to a Community Reach Center Manager. 

• 	 Inmate scheduled to be released/bonded while on Suicide Watch * 
• 	 Inmate scheduled to be released/bonded and chart has been flagged * by Mental Health 

or by Medical ACDF staff 
• 	 Inmate becomes substantially dangerous to self or others and on-site procedures (e.g . 

Suicide Watch, PRN medications, CRB review, etc.) have been exhausted and continue t\ 
be in effective. 

*Suicide Watch is a specific level of observation in which the inmate is considered to be 
at high risk of harming self or others (e .g. presenting with SI and a plan, recent suicide 
attempt, recently charged with murder, transferred from state hospital on M-l hold, etc.) . 
This is not to be confused with other levels of observation including Suicide Observation or 
Mental Health Observation . 

* Flagged: Medical Chart will have a fluorescent cover to identify and booking will be 
notified. This indicates that while inmate may not need Suicide Watch while incarcerated, 
mental health or medical staff has identified risks (e .g. risk of harm to self or others) that 
may become more prominent upon release or in another setting. 

Procedlll" fOl' Conll'acto!' 'Illploytts 
• 	 Community Reach Center Staff: During work hours licensed Jail Therapy program staff 

are primarily responsible to these situations. Clinicians will be notified by Booking or 
deputies of the situation and assured that the inmate has signed any and all bonding 
papers. Upon receipt of notification clinicians are to complete the following within one 
hour 
• 	 Locate medical chart & review 
• 	 Face-to-face evaluate client and complete Crisis Assessment Form 
• 	 Formulate Decision and Communicate 

• 	 If client is safe to be released advise Booking 
• 	 If client requires M 1 hold upon release follow procedures and communicate to 

booking, Community Reach Center supervisor, Medical Contractor supervisor/charge 
nurse, and ACDF Duty Sergeant on shift. 

• 	 Document 
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• 	 Community Reach Center MCT Staff : During non-business hours, weekends (when there 
are no licensed Community Reach Center staff on site), and holidays (when there are 
no licensed Community Reach Center on site), Community Reach Center MCT will be 
the primary response to these situations. Community Reach Center MCT will be notified 
by Protocol that ACDF or Medical Contractor staff has contacted the Community Reach 
Center crisis line and needs an onsite evaluation. Upon receipt of notification MCT 
clinicians are to complete the following within three (3) hours. 
• 	 Provide Driver's License & Community Reach Center ID badge to front desk and 

request access to the infirmary 
• 	 Request medical chart, review & confirm that all necessary bonding papers are signed 

and completed . 
• 	 Face-to-face evaluate client and complete the Community Reach Center Crisis 

Evaluation Form 
• 	 Formulate Decision and Communicate 

• 	 If client is safe to be released advise Medical Contractor Charge Nurse who will 
perform all other duties and notifications 

• 	 If client requires Ml hold upon release follow procedures and communicate to 
Medical Contractor Charge Nurse. Request to speak to ACDF Shift Sergeant and 
collaborate regarding transportation. Depending on where inmate is going, safety, 
etc. ACDF MAY provide transportation . If not, follow Community Reach Center 
policy & procedure for transportation. 

• 	 Document 

E\'n'ption Siluation: Inmate becomes substantially dangerous to self or others and on-site 
procedures (e.g. Suicide Watch, PRN medications, CRB review, etc.) have been exhausted and 
continue to be in effective. 

*This situation should only occur after ALL POSSIBLE collaborative efforts have been 
made to safely maintain the individual in incarceration * In other words, when this 
situation occurs it has already been brought to the attention of the Jail Program Supervisor, 
Medical Contractor Nurse Manager, and ACDF staff. If that is not the case, do not access 
Community Reach Center Crisis Services - safely manage the situation and advise all parties of 
the inmate in question . 

• 	 Community Reach Center Staff: During work hours LICENSED Jail Therapy program staff 
is primary response to these situations. Clinicians will be notified by Medical Contractor 
nurses or ACDF deputies of the situation. 
• 	 Locate medical chart & review 
• 	 Discuss case with Community Reach Center Supervisor, Medical Contractor supervisor, 

and either ACDF Administrative Commander or designee. 
• 	 Face-to-face evaluate client and complete Crisis Assessment Form 
• 	 Communicate your assessment to Community Reach Center Psychiatrist (See 

Psychiatric coverage policy below). 
• 	 Community Reach Center psychiatric provider will formulate deciSion and communicate 

• 	 If client can be managed on site, with recommendations 
• 	 If client requires care outside ACDF, psychiatrist will need to write a letter 

addressed to ACDF that we psychiatrically recommend transferring this client to 
an inpatient facility based on medically necessary criteria that indicate client's 
dangerousness to self & others cannot be safely managed on site . Letter must 
be dated, signed, and hand delivered to the Medical Contractor Health Services 
Administrator or ACDF Administrative Commander. 

• 	 Document 
• 	 Community Reach Center MCT Staff: *NO RESPONSE REQUIRED* Due to the nature of 

on-call services, there is no mechanism in place to provide the psychiatric consultation 
and documentation (e .g . letter to Community Reach Center) necessary for this case. If 
ES is called off-hours and requested to initiate transfer to inpatient hospital - advise that 
this must be handled by the on -site Community Reach Center Jail Therapy Program Staff. 
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for Behavioral Hea lth Crisis Access 
Community Crisis Connection and Colorado Crisis Services Working Together: 
Community Crisis Connection is part of Colorado's statewide crisis system - "Colorado Crisis Services" - which makes behavioral health 
crisis care accessible for Coloradans of all ages. This system includes the statewide Colorado Crisis Support Line and the following 
programs delivered by Community Crisis Connection in the metro Denver/Boulder region: 

• Walk-In Crisis Centers: Located across metro Denver/Boulder for anyone experiencing a behavioral health crisis. 
• Crisis Stabilization Units: Combine walk-in availability with short-term respite or residential treatment if needed. 
• Mobile Crisis: Crisis counselors can travel throughout all nine counties in the metro Denver/Boulder region. 
Colorado Crisis Support Line staff are responsible for dispatching these teams when warranted. 

All services are available 24 hours/day, 7 days/week, 365 days/year, Types of services include: 

• Behavioral Health Triage & Substance Use Screening 
• Immediate Crisis Intervention and De-Escalation 
• Follow-up Crisis Services when needed: Clinical and/or psychiatric assessments, ongoing de-escalation and crisis interventions, 

medication evaluation, peer support services, and case management services. 
, Disposition/Referral: Safety planning, referral to other providers, and support for involved family and significant others. 

How to Access Colorado Crisis Services Programs: 

• By PilOIIE' Call Colorado Crisis Support Line: 1-844-493·TA LK (8255) - available 24/7/365 
• Walk· ill/Referral: Individuals and families in crisis arp wpl,-nmp ~nrl encouraged to walk in. Any community member can refer 

another person to any of our locations 
~------------------------------~ 

• Westminster Walk-In cente r ( All Ages) 
84th Avenue Neighborhood Health Center 

2551 W. 84th Avenue 
Operated by Community Reach Center 

, lIeuldor Walk'in Cent~r (All AI:"'I 
Ryan Wellness Center 
1000 Alpine Avenue 

(West Entrance) 
Opera led by Menial Hea/lh Parlners 

BOUL DER 

GILPIN 

, lok,'wood W,IHn (onl 'r (Al l AK~'1 _______ 

BROOMFIELD 

Union Square Health Plaza _____ 0 

12055 W. 2nd Place 
Operated by Jefferson Center for 

Menial Hea/lh 

CLEAR CREEK 

JEFFERSON 

Community Crisis Connection partners include: 

Mental Health Partners (Boulder and Broomfield Counties) 

DOUGLAS 

Jefferson Center for Mental Health (Jefferson, Clear Creek and Gilpin Counties) 
Community Reach Center (Adams County except Aurora) 
Mental Health Center of Denver (Denver City and County) 
Aurora Mental Health Center (City of Aurora) 

, O"r,"", W I. In Cenl", (All <l.g~" 
4353 E. Colfax Avenue 

Opera led by Menial Health 
Cenler of Denver 

ARAPAHOE 

• Aurora W.llk- In (ellie. (All All''') 
Anschutz Medical Campus 

2206 Victor Street 
Opera led by Aurora 

Menial Hea/lh Cenler 

• liltl..\cn W.I1, In Cenler (All A~",) 
Santa Fe House 

6509 S. Santa Fe Drive 
Operated by Arapahoe/Douglas 

Menial Health Network 

A"P'h"/DO~':~'~~;:r:~O: (~;;:;:d;:;;:;;m.pt A,w,,) ~C LORA DO 
24/7/365 at 1-844-493-TALK (8255) ~.l~ C~ISIS .,S~~V.~CES 

Revised 10/23/15 
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HENRyHAM 
INSURANCEAGENCYINc . 
Bonds · Property. Casualty . Commercial. Persona l 

Since 1926 Phone (303) 744 -1341 Fax (303) 744 -0654 

wwwhenryham.com 

December 9, 2015 

Community Reach Center Inc. 
1850 Egbert St. #200 
Brighton , CO 80601 

To whom it may concern, 

The insurance policy that Community Reach Center currently has in place provides coverage for 
general liability with limits of $1 M/$3M and professional liability with limits of $1 M/$3M. 

This policy is specifically designed to cover the exposures of a mental health facility including the jail 
therapy program. 

The bid bond and performance bonds are approved and can be issued when requested . 

Please let me know if you need any further information. 

Sincerely 

I i 
(-AN~- cLc\~ 
Greg Ham 

645 E. Evans Ave. - Denver CO 802 10 

Over 80 years of quality service 

http:wwwhenryham.com
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 

(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 


Independent Auditor's Report and Financial Statements 


June 30, 2014 and 201 3 
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 
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June 30, 2014 and 2013 
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Board of Directors 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

Community Reach Center, Inc. 

We have aud ited the accompanying financial statemen ts of Community Reach Center, Inc. (a Member of 
Community Reach Center Systems. Inc.) (the Center), which comprise the balance sheets as of June 30, 
2014 and 2013, and the related statements of operations, changes in net assets and of cash fl ows for the 
years then ended, and related notes to the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting pl'inciples generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are fi'ee from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibi lity is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Uni ted States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the aud it to obtain reasonabl e assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fin ancial statements, whether due to fi-aud or enor. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor consi ders intel1lal control relevant to the entity's 

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's intel1lal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting polici es used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
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t it I I en I ed FIn (I I Stat n ·n t 

Board of Directors 

Community Reach Center, Inc. 


Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred 10 above present fairly, in all material respects, tl1e 
financial posit ion of Community Reach Center, Inc. as of June 30, 2014 and 2013. and the results of its 
operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Colorado Springs, Colorado 
November 20, 2014 

2 
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AI t rhment L " ited FIll, 11(lal tat m ts 

Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 


Balance Sheets 


June 30, 2014 and 2013 


Assets 

2014 
Curren t Assets 

Cash and cash equi"alents $ 7.754, 170 
Restricted cash 68,528 
Accounts receivable 

Clicl1l accounts receivable, Icss allowance fo r uncollectible 
accounts: 2014 . $1.203.563 and 2013 . $790.544 398.987 

Medicare services. less allowance for uncollectible 
accounts: 2014 . S143.432 and 2013 . $1 0~,298 202.999 

Grams, contrac ts and other 850.382 
Due Ii'om affiliates 
8H I receivab le 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 10,592 

T otal curren! assets 9.285,658 

Investment in BHI 1.573.914 

Property and Eq uipment, at Cost 
Equipmen! 14 ,702 
Leasehold improvements 158,820 
Buildings 52.756 

226,278 
Less accumu lated depreciation and amortization 116.87 1 

2013 

$ 5,713.336 
113.153 

573.128 

114,987 
554.051 
705,478 
30.000 
33. 186 

7,837.3 19 

1.317.5t7 

158,820 
44 ,785 

203605 
IOn90 

109.407 99.2 15 

Tora l assets $ 10.968.979 $ 9,254.051 

See Notes 10 Financial Slatements 



Community Reach Center Respo nse 10 Adam :; (olln ll Reque '( for Pn)posa l 2015.348 

Attachment - Au It d FinCH I I 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Accrued "'acation payable 
Deferred revenue 
Due to affi liates 
BHI payable 

S 

2014 

392,084 
423.005 
616.682 

8) 16 
2.385.80 I 

$ 

2013 

792.684 
827,974 
595.55 8 

42.060 

228.695 

Total current liabi lities 3.825,788 2.486,971 

Net Assets 
Unr~stricled 

Temporarily restricted 
7.142.691 

500 
6.766.580 

500 

Total net assets 7.143.191 6.767.080 

Total li abi lities and net as sets S 10.968.979 $ 9,2 54.051 

3 
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At tarh n nt d Ftr rl r I I nt 

Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 

Statements of Operations 

Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 

Revenues. Gains and Other Support 
BHI subcapilalion and other 
Net client service rCvenu e 
Total government 
Contribu ti ons 
Donated building space. medications ~nd selvices 
Education 
Other 

$ 

2014 

24.4 14.574 
3.575,780 
3.306.396 

3.930 
74.965 

1,021,3 13 
405.907 

:;; 

2013 

21. 890.633 
3,593,095 
3.089.790 

1.215 
71,6 11 

935,876 
41 2.240 

Total re \'C I1UCS, gains and other support 32,802.865 29.994.460 

Expenses 
Person nel 
Client 
Occupanc) 
Operat ing 
Provision for uncoileci i ble accounts 
Other 
Donated items 

19.327,943 
1.258.592 
2.4 18,640 
2,727,795 

790.550 
484.822 

74.965 

18.217. 316 
4,196.232 
2,325,741 
2.462,975 

592,269 
356.9 10 

71,611 

Tota l expenses 27.083.307 28,223.054 

Operating Income 5.7 19.558 1.771.406 

Other Income 
Investment return 
Net gain on iO\cstment in equity inl'estces 

156 
256,397 

7.023 
25 ,693 

Total other in come 256.553 32.7 16 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenses 5,976, I II 1,804, 122 

Net unrealized losses 
Transfers to affil iates (5.600,000) 

(4,756) 
(1,619,434) 

Increa se in Cnrestricted Net Assets S 376.111 $ 179.932 

See Notes 10 Financial Statements 4 
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(tad n lit l - u .led Inan ., Sta lent 

Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 


Statements of Changes in Net Assets 


Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 


2014 
Unrestricted Net Assets 

E~cess ofrevellues OYer expenses S 5,976, I I I 
Nel unrealized losses 
Transfers to affiliates (5 .600.000) 

Increase in unreSlricled net asse ls 376.111 

Increase in Net Assets 376.11 1 

Net Assets, Beginn ing of Year 6,767,080 

2013 

$ 1.804,12:? 
(4,756) 

(1.619,434) 

179.932 

179,932 

6.587.148 

Ne t Assets, End of Year S 7, 143.19 1 $ 6.767.080 

See Notes to Financial Statements 5 
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended June 30,2014 and 2013 

Operating Activities 
Change in net assets 
Items not requ iring (providing) cash 

Pro\'ision fo r uncollectible acco unt s 
Depreciat ion 
Gain on in vestmen t in equ iry investees 
Transfers to affiliat~s 

Changes in 
Restricted cash 
Accounts rece j\'able 
Due fi'om affiliates 
Other curren t ass~ts 
Acco unts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Ac cru ed \'a~atio n pay 
DeieITed re venue 

Net cash jJro vided by operating activities 

Investing Activities 
Purchase ofjJroperty and equi pment 
Net ~a l es or im estments 

Net cash pro vided by (used in ) investing acti vities 

Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equiva lents, End of Year 

NouclIsh Investing and Financing Activities 
Acc rued transfer to artiiiates 

2014 

$ 376, II I 

790.550 
12,482 

(256.397) 

5.600.000 

44.625 
(1,000.752) 
(4.894,522) 

52.594 
1,756,507 
(404.970) 

2 1. 12 4 

(33 .844 ) 

2. 063 .508 

(2 2,674) 

(22,674 ) 

2,040,83 4 

5.7 13.3 36 

$ 7,754,170 

$ 5.600,000 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2013 

179.932 

592 .269 
9,835 

(25 ,693) 
1. 619,43 4 

20, 188 
(940.767) 
(304.50 I) 

(24,476) 
5 10,824 
(67,884) 
(J 9. I 33) 

37.560 

1.587.588 

479,753 

479.753 

2.067.341 

3,645 .995 

5,7 13.336 

1,6 19.434 

See Notes to Financial Statements 6 
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 


Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2014 and 2013 


Note 1: Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations 

Community Reach Center, Inc. (the Center) is a Colorado nonprofit corporation formed to prolide 
mental health care services primarily to residents of Adams County, Colorado. The Center's main 
sources of revenues are government funding, a subcapitation agreement for Medicaid services and 
other fee for service revenues. The Center is an affiliate of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc. 
(Systems), Community Reach Center Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation), Coronado Residences, 
Inc. (Coronado), Mountainland Pediatrics, Inc. (Mountainland) and Brighton Lifelong Learning 
and Resource Center Association (Condo Association). 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Basis of Accounting 

The financial statements con form with the reponing gu idelines issued by the State of Colorado, 
Department of Human Services. Office of Health and Rehabilitation Services, Mental Health 
Services, including guidelines outlined in the Audit alld Accounting Guidefor Health Care 
Organi:;;alions issued by the American Institute of Cenified Public Accountants. 

Cash Equivalents 

The Center considers all liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be 
cash equivalents. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, cash equivalents consisted primarily of money 
market accounts with brokers and certificates of deposit. 

At June 30, 2014. the Center's cash accounts exceeded federally insured limits by approximately 
$6,450,000. 

Net Client Service Revenue 

Net client service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from clients, third­
party payers and others for services rendered including estimated retroactive adjustments under 
reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an 
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final 
settlements are determined. 

7 
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Att, h n n udlt d II n( 

Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 


Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30,2014 and 2013 


Accounts Receivable 

First- and third-party accounts receivable are reponed at net realizable amounts. The allowance for 
uncollectible accounts is based upon the Center 's past col lection experience, the character of the 
receivable, cUlTent economic conditions and other factors which, in management's judgment, 
should be considered in estimating the allowance for unrealizable accounts. Public agencies' 
accounts receivable are considered to be fully collectible by management; accordingly, no 
allowance for unrealizable accounts has been recorded related to these accounts. 

Charity Care 

The Center provides care to indigent clients who meet ce!1ain criteria under its charity care policy 
without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. The Center's direct and indirect costs 
for services furnished under the Center's charity care policy were approximate ly $2,800,000 and 
$3,600,000 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013. respectively. The Center estimates the 
direct and indirect costs of providing charity care by applying the ratio of cost to gross charges to 
the uncompensated charges. 

Investments and Investment Return 

The Center utilizes the equity method of accounting for investments in and advances to cel1ain 
affiliates over which the Center exercises significant influence. Under this method , the Center's 
share of the net income or net losses of the affi liates is reflected as income or loss in equity 
investees and serves to increase or reduce the recorded amount of the Center's investment in and 
advances to the affiliates. 

Investments in equity securities having a readily determinable fair value and in all debt securities 
are carried at fair value. All other investments are valued at the lower of cost (or fair value at time 
of donation, if acquired by contribution) or market value. Investment retuill includes dividend, 
interest and other investment income: realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments 
carried at fair value, and realized gains and losses 011 other investments. Investment return that is 
initially restricted by donor stipulation, and for which the restriction will be satisfied in the same 
year. are included in unrestricted net assets. Other investment retul'n is reflected in the statements 
of operations as unrestricted or temporarily restricted based upon the existence and nature of any 
donor or legally imposed restrictions. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the esti mated useful life of 
each asset stated at cost. 

8 
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Att hmen L - Audited 1-111.111<..1< I tc ti:.mel t 

Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 


Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30, 2014 and 2013 


Contributions 

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are accrued at estimated fair value at the date 
each promise is received. The gi fts are repolied as either temporarily or pennanently restricted 
suppoli if they are received with donor stipUlations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a 
donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is 
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and 
reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions 
are met within the same year as received are reported as unrestricted contributions. Receipt of 
contributions which are conditional are reported as liabilities until the condition is eliminated or the 
contributed assets are returned to the donor. 

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by the Center has been limited by donors to a 
specific time period or purpose. 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenses 

The statements of operations include excess of revenues over expenses. Changes in unrestricted 
net assets which are excluded from excess of revenues over expenses, consistent with industlY 
pl'actice, include unrealized gains and losses on investments other than trading securities and 
permanent transfers to and from affil iates for other than goods and services. 

Donated Materials, Building Space and Services 

Donations of materials, building space and services are recorded as both a revenue and an expense. 
Donated materials are valued at their estimated cunent market values as determined by vendor 
price lists and various other methods. Donated building space is valued at estimated fair rental 
value based upon rentals of similar real estate. 

Donated services are recognized as revenue at their estimated fair value only when the services 
received create or enhance nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills possessed by the 
individuals providing the service and the service would typically need to be purchased ifnot 
donated. 

Functional Expense Cost Allocations 

For calculating unit costs ofservices, the Center allocates direct and traceable expenses from cost 
centers to service programs based on the ratio of clinician time and compensation in each program 
to total clinician time and compensation. Units of service are determined on a programmatically 
distinct basis. General and administrative costs are allocated for unit costs calculations based on a 
percentage of expenses to total expenses as required by the Colorado Department of Human 
Services, Division of Behavioral Health, Accounling and Auditing Guidelines. 

9 
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A t hn ot 

Community Reach Center, Inc. 

(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 


Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30, 2014 and 2013 


Income Taxes 

The Center is exempt from income taxes under Section501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and 
a similar provision of state law. With a few excepti ons, the Center is no longer subject to U.S. 
federal examinations by tax authorities for years before 20 I I. 

Reclassifications 

Certain reclass ifications have been made to the 2013 financial statements to conform to the 2014 
financia l statement presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on the change in net assets. 

Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through the date of the Independent Auditor's Report, 
which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 

Note 2: 	 Charity Care 

The Center provides care to indigent clients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy 
without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. The Center's direct and indirect costs 
for services furnished under the Center's charity care policy were $3,418.872 and $3,840,313 for 
the years ended June 30, 2014 and 20 13, respective ly. The Center has received approximately 
$596,000 and $227,000 in 2014 and 20 13, respective ly, to subsidize charity services provided 
under its chal'ity care policy. 

Note 3: 	 Related-party Transactions - Organizational Structure and Affiliated 
Organizations 

Systems was fOlmed as a management entity for the purpose of overseeing the financial and 
administrative affairs of the charitable corporate affiliates including the Center. Systems incurs 
management, general and administrative expenses common to all of the affiliates and charges each 
affiliate , including the Center, a management fee on a pro-rata basis. Total management fee 
expense for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $4,912,384 and $5,079,537, respect ively . 

The Center leased space from the Foundation and other norn-elated entities for certain programs. 
Total rental and lease expense for the years ended June 30, 20 I 4 and 2013 was $1,666,847 and 
$1,475,618, respectively. 

The Center had transfers to affiliates of$5 ,600,000 and SI,619,434 for the years ended June 30, 
20 14 and 2013, respectively. Additionally, the Center advances funds to affiliates for cash flow 
pLlrposes. 

10 
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ttnc.hm nt l - Audi d Fin~Hl I 

Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 


Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30,2014 and 2013 


The net amounts due from all affiliates at June 30, 2014 and 2013 are composed of the following: 

2014 2013 

Due from (to) affiliates $ (2,385,80 I) :£ 705.4 78 

Note 4: Investments in Affiliates 

Behavioral Healthcare, Inc. 

The Center is a member of Behavioral Healthcare, Inc. (BHI). BHI is organized as a not-for-profit 
corporation and is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3). BHI was formed to act as a 
Medicaid intermediary related to the Medicaid capitation project in which the Center and two other 
mental health centers paJ1icipate. Revenue from BHI, including contract wages, at June 30, 2014 
and 2013 is as follows: 

2014 2013 

Medicaid subcapitation $ 23,057,170 $ 18,406,112 
Wrap-around services 805,096 1,854.228 
Intensive service alternatives 190,945 184,845 
Inpatient 361.363 1,445,448 

24.414,574 21,890,633 
Contract wages 66,812 61,188 

S 24.481,386 S 21,951,821 

The above activity resulted in an amount due to BH[ of$O and $228,695 as of June 30, 2014 and 
2013, respectively. There is also a liability recorded within accrued liabilities at June 30, 20[4 and 
2013 in the amount of SO and 5466,827, respectively, for claims paid for by BHI on behalfofthe 
Center. At June 30, 2014 and 2013. BHI owed the Center $0 and S30,000 for subcapitation 
disbursements, respectively. 

11 
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc .) 


Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30, 2014 and 2013 


BHI mai ntains a separate equ ity account for each meJllber and distributions and earnings are 
all ocated to each Jllember based upon their ac ti vity for the year. The investment is accounted for 
using the equi ty method of accounting. The fo llowing is a recap of the equity investme nt: 

2014 2013 

Begi nning investment in BHI 
Net gain on investment in equity illv estee 

$ 1,3 17,5 17 

256,3 97 

$ 1,29 1,824 

25,693 

Ending inv estment in BH I 5) 1,573,9 14 $ 1,3 17,5 17 

The fol lowing is a condensed audited balance shee t of BH 1as of June 30, 20 14 and 201 3, and the 
related revenues, expenses and investment income for the years then ended. Information was obta ined 
from audited financia l statements presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles in the United Stares of America. 

2014 2013 

Current assets $ 14,658.535 $ 6,51 3,8 1 I 
Li mired as to use assets 400,000 400,000 
Fixed assets 1.033 

Total assets 15.059,568 6,913,8 II 

Total li abil ities 10,9 18,1 37 3,447.11 0 

Net assets - unrestri cted $ 4, 14 1,43 1 $ 3,466 ,70 1 

Revenues $ 89,377,560 $ 68,686.8 10 
Expenses (8 9,1 58,953 ) (6 8,889,697) 
Other revenue 456,1 23 270,49 8 

Increase in ne t assets $ 674,730 $ 67,6 11 

12 
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2014 and 2013 

Note 5: Employee Benefit Plans 

401(k) Profit-Sharing Plan 

For fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, all salarjed employees who are age 21, have 
completed one year of service and have worked at least 1,000 hours are eligible to participate in the 
defined contribu tion pension plan. Effecti ve January 1,20 13, in order to participate in the Center's 
matchi ng and non-e lective contr ibutions, an employee must have completed at least 1,000 ho urs of 
service during a consecutive 12-month period. The Center contributes annually to the plan an 
amount equal to 3% of the employee's compensation. In addition. the Center will match a 
percentage of participant contributions to the plan in an amount equal to the lesser of 3% of 
earnings or 50% of the employee's contribution. 

Included in genera l and admin ist rat ive costs are plan expenses of$426, 115 and $432,936 for the 
years ended June 30, 20 14 and 2013, respect ively. 

Self-insured Health Care Plan 

The Center sponsors a hea lth care plan for its employees. The plan provides benefits for 
hospitalization and medica l coverage . The Center is self-insured for the first $50,000 of claims per 
year, per insured individual with the excess reinsured with a commercial insurance company up to 
an aggregate amount of$I,OOO,OOO. Plan expenses for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 
were $1,271, I 15 and $ J,502,068. respect ively. 

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Center has recorded a Iiabilit), related to outstanding claims of 
$210,863 and $90,863, respect ively, which is included in acc rued liabi lit ies on the balance sheets. 

Note 6: 

Tem

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 

porarily restricted net assets are available for the fo ll owing purposes: 

2014 2013 

Other mental health programs $ 500 $ 500 

There were no net assets released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the 
restricted purposes for both yea rs ended June 30, 20 14 and 20 13. 

13 



Coml11uni t\ Reac h ('enter Response to Ad~llls Count\ Reques t for Proposa l 2015.348 
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 

(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 


Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30,2014 and 2013 


Note 7: Functional Expenses 

The Center's expenses for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 relate to the following 
acti vities: 

2014 2013 

Mental health se rvices 
Other programs 
General and administrative 

$ 21,633,204 

537,719 
4,9 12,384 

$ 22,567,621 
575 ,897 

5,079,536 

$ 27,083,307 $ 28,223,054 

Note 8: Significant Estimates and Concentrations 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require disclosure of 
cerrain significant estimates and current vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations. Those 
matters incl ude the following: 

Allowances for Net Client Service Revenue Adjustments 

Estimates of al lowances for adjustments included in net client service revenue are described in 
Note I. 

Professional Liability Coverage and Claims 

The Center pays fi xed prem iums for annual professional liability insurance coverage under a 
claims-made policy. Under such policy, only claims made and reported to the insurer are covered 
during the policy term. regardless of when the incident giving ri se to the claim occurred. The 
Center is not aware of any unasserted claims, unreported incidents or claims outstanding which are 
expected to exceed professional liability insurance coverage limits as of June 30,2014. 
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc .) 


Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30, 2014 and 2013 


Revenue Concentration 

Approximately 75% and 73% of the Center's unrestricted revenues for the years ended June 30, 
2014 and 20 13, respectively, was the result of the subcapi tation managed care contract with BHI to 

provide mental health managed care services for Medicaid recipients. Undcr thc subcapitat ion 
ag reement, the Center will be required to provide all mental health services for any clients 
(Covered Persons) participating under the Colorado Medicaid program within the covered area for 
fi xed, monthly prepaid contracted amounts based on Medicaid recipient categories for all Covered 
Persons. The contract with BHI expires on June 30. 2019. 

BHI has previously been noti fied ofpos~ ible overpayments for various fi scal years. related to 
capitation payments made by the State of Colorado for ineligible clients and has recorded an 
est imated liability for the recoupments. BHI intends to investigate the asser1ions. Subsequent to 
June 30. 2013 , BHI was notified by tbe Co lorado Department of Health Care Policy and Financing 
that the State of Colorado does not intend to perform optional annual reconciliations for fiscal years 
2011,2012 and 2013, but would not preclude the federal government's involvement in this matter. 
The State of Colorado wi ll continue to pursue post-pay recoveries (date of death), recoveries under 
the Public Ass istance Reporting Information System (PARIS) project, and recoveries for elients in 
an institution for mental disease (IM D). 

In addition, BHI has recorded an estimated receivable for retroactive adjustments fo r eligible 
persons . The State of Colorado is in the process of changing the policy for retroactive enrollment. 
The estimated receivable and payabl e recorded at BHI described above could differ materially in 
the near term which could affect the subcapitation payments of the Center. 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

Board of Directors 

Community Reach Center, Inc. 

Thornton. Colorado 


We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Community Reach Center, Inc. (a Member of 
Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) (the Center), which comprise the balance sheets as of June 30, 
2015 and 2014, and the related statements of operat ions. changes in net assets and of cash flows fOI' the 
years then ended, and related no tes to the tinancia l statements. 

Management 's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America: this includes 
the design , imp lementation and mai nte nance of internal cont ro l relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements tha t are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibi lity is to express an opinion on these fi nancial statcments based on our aud its. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with aud iti ng standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from materia l missta tement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit ev idence about the amounts and disc losures in 
the financial statements. The procedures se lected depend on the auditor's judgment. includ ing the 
assessment of the risks o f material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fra ud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal con trol relevant to the enti ty'S 
preparation and fair presentation of the financia l statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal controL Accordingly, we express no such op in ion. An audit also inc ludes evaluati ng 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management , as well as eva luat ing the overa ll presentation of the fina ncial statemen ts. 

We believe that the aud it evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis fo r 
our audit opinion. 
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Board of Directors 

Communit), Reach Center, Inc, 


Opinion 

In our opinion, tbe financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Community Reach Center, Inc. as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 , and the results of its 
operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 

Colorado Springs, Colorado 
November 19,2015 

2 



Commu ni ty Reach ('eil ler Re pOllse to Adam s Coull l." Req lest for Propo'a l 2015.348 

ttit hm n Audl ed Fill I 

Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 

Balance Sheets 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 

Assets 

C u rrent Assc ts 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Restr ictcd cash 
Accounts r~ceivable 

Clien t accounts rece ivable. less allo"ance for uncollectible 
accoun ts: 20 15 - $682.335 and 20 14 - $1.203.563 

Med icare services. less allowance tor uncollectible 
accounts: 20 15 - $8.0~2 and 20 14 - $ 143.432 

Grants. contracts and oth~r 
Pre raid expenses and other current asse ts 

$ 

2015 

9.81 6.157 
111,3 29 

~56,964 

26.894 
I. 743.534 

33.906 

Total current asse ts 12.188. 784 

Contrib uti on Receivable for Donated Use of Building 1.203.730 

Investmcnt in BHI 2.'226.769 

PropCl'ty and Equipment, at Cost 
Equipment 
Leasehold improvements 
Buildings 
Constructi()n in progress 

6. 106 
158.820 
52.756 
16,554 

Less accumulated depreciation and amort ization 
234.236 
127. 745 

106.491 

Total assets S 15.725. 774 

2014 

S 7.75~.170 

68.528 

398.987 

202.999 
850.382 

10.592 

9.285.658 

1.573 ,914 

14 .702 
158.&20 
52.756 

226,278 
11 6.87 1 

109.407 

$ 10,968,979 

See Notes to Financial Statements 3 
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 


Balance Sheets (continued) 


June 30 , 2015 and 2014 


Liabilities and Net Assets 

2015 
Curren t Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Accrued li abi lities 
Accrued vacat ion payable 
DefelTed revenue 

Due to affi liates 
BHI payable 

$ 358.016 
51 9,745 
688.973 

3,6:;0 
3.261.929 
2.400.5\ 0 

Total current liabilities 7.232.793 

Net Assets 

Unrestr icted 
Temporari Iy restric ted 

7,289.25 1 
1.203.730 

Tota l net assets 8,492.98 1 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 15 ,725.774 

2014 

S 	 392.084 
423,005 
616.682 

8.2 16 
2385,801 

3.825.788 

7, 142.691 
500 

7,143.191 

$ 10,968.979 

See Notes to Financial Statements 4 
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 

Statements of Operations 

Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 

Rel'enu es , Gain s and Other Supp or t 
BH I sub ca piiat ion and other 
Nel client service re ven ue 
Total govemment 
Contributi ons 
Donated buildi ng space. mcdi calions and serv ices 
Education 
Olher 
Net assets re leased from restrictions 

2015 

$ 29.352.645 
4.337.142 
4.436.580 

1.15 0 
226,500 

1.325 .23 1 
251.382 

500 

$ 

2014 

24,4 14 .574 
3.575 ,780 
3.306,396 

3,930 
74.965 

1,021,313 
405 .907 

Total revenues. gains and other support 39.93 1.130 32.802.865 

Expenses 
Personnel 
Client 
Occupanc) 
Operating 
Provis ion for uncollectibk accoun ts 
Other 
Donaled items 

24.660.76 1 
1. 164,141 
2.804,190 
3.956.80 I 

585.327 
539.862 
226,500 

19,327.943 
1,258.592 
2.4 18 .640 
2.727,795 

790.550 
484.822 

74,965 

Tutal exp~nses 33.937 .58:? 27,083,307 

Operatin g In co me 5.993,548 5.7 19,558 

Oth er Inco me 
I nvestment return 
Net ga in on investment in equity inveslces 

157 
652.855 

156 
256 .397 

Total other income 653.012 256.553 

Excess of Rel'e nu es Over Expen ses 6.646.560 5.976. 111 

Transfers to aflili ates ( 6.500.000) (5,600,000) 

Increase in Unrestricted ~et Asse ts S 146.560 $ 376.111 

See Notes to Financial Statements 5 
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 


Statements of Changes in Net Assets 


Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 


2015 
Unrestric ted Net Asse ts 

Excess of reve nues over expenses 
Transfers to affili<ltes 

$ 6.646,560 
(6 .500.000) 

I ncrease in unrestricled net assets 146,560 

Tempora r ily Restricted Ne t Assets 
Contribution of donated use of bu ilding 
Ne t assels rekased from restriction 

1,203 .730 
(500) 

Increase in temporarily restricted net assets 1203.230 

2014 

$ 5,976.111 
(5 ,600,000) 

376.1 11 

In crease in Net Asse ts 1. 349.790 376.1 11 

Ne t Assets , Beg inning of Year 7, 143.191 6)67.080 

Ne t Assets. End of Year $ 8.492.981 S 7,143.191 

See Notes to Financial Statements 6 
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 

Operating Acti"ities 
Change in net assets 
Items no1 requiring (pro\'iding) cash 

Pro\'ision for uncollectible accounts 
Depreciation 
Gain on investment in equil) investees 
T"allsfers to affiliates 
COimibution of donated use of building 

Changes in 
Restricted cash 
Accounts recei\'able 
Due from affiliates 
Other current asselS 
Accounts payahle 
Accrued expenses 
Accrued \,acat ion pay 
Deferred revenue 

)Jet cash provided b) operaling activities 

Investing Activities 
Purchase ol'property and equipment 

l\e t cash used in investing act ivities 

Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents , Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 

Noncash Inves ting and Financing Activities 
Accrued transfer 10 afliliates 

2015 

$ 1.349.790 

585 .3 27 
10,874 

(652.855) 
6,500.000 

(1,203,730) 

(42.801 ) 
(1.360,351 ) 
(5.623.872) 

(23,3 14 ) 
2,366,442 

91\.740 
72.291 
(4 .596) 

2.069.945 

(7 .958) 

(7.958) 

2,061 ,987 

7.754. 170 

$ 9,8 16, 157 

$ 6.500.000 

$ 

$ 

S 

2014 

376.111 

790.550 
12.482 

(256.397) 
5.600,000 

44,625 
(1.000.752) 
(4,894.522) 

52,594 
1.756.507 
(404,970) 

2 1.1 24 
(33.844) 

2.063.508 

(22.674) 

(22.674) 

2,040,834 

5.7 13.336 

7.754.1 70 

5.600.000 

See Notes to Financial Statements 7 
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 


Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30, 2015 and 2014 


Note 1: Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations 

Conununity Reach Center, Inc. (the Center) is a Colorado nonprofit corporation tarmed to provide 
mental health care services primarily to residem s of Adams County, Colorado. The Center's main 
sources of revenues are government funding, a subcapitation agreement for Medicaid services and 
other fee for service reve nues. The Center is an affiliate of Community Reach Center Systems , 
Inc. (Systems), Adams Mental Health Foundation, Inc. d/bia ComlTlunity Reach Center 
Found ation, Inc. (the Found ation) , Coronado Residences, Inc. (Coronado), Mountainland 
Pediatrics, Inc. (Mountain land) and Brighton Lifel ong Learning and Resource Center Association 
(Condo Association). 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Basis ofAccounting 

The financial statements conform with the reporting guidelines issued by the State of Colorado, 
Department of Human Services, Office of Health and Rehabilitation Services. Mental Health 
Services, including guidelines outlined in the Audil and AcwlInling Guide for Health Care 
Organizations issued by the American Institute ofCeliified Public Accountants. 

Cash Equivalents 

The Center considers al l liquid investments with origina l maturities of three months or less to be 
cash equivale nts . At June 30, 201 5 and 20 14, cash equivalents consisted primarily of money 
market accounts with brokers and celii fi cates of deposit. 

At June 30,2015, the Center's cash accounts exceeded federally insured limits by approximately 
$8,339,000. 

Net Client Service Revenue 

Net client service revenue is repolied a t the estimated net realizable amounts from clients, third­
party payers and others for services rendered including estimated retroactive adjustments under 
reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an 
estimated bas is in the period the related se rvices are rendered and adjusted in future periods as 
final settl ements are determ ined. 
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 

(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 


Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30, 2015 and 2014 


Accounts Receivable 

First- and third-party accounts receivable are reported at net rea lizable amounts. The allowance 
for uncoll ec tible accounts is based lIpon the Ce nter's past co llection ex per ience, the character of 
the receivable. current economic condi tions and other factors which, in management 'sj udgment , 
shou ld be considered in estimating the allowance for unrealizable accounts. Pu blic agencies' 
accounts receivable are considered to be fu ll y collectible by management; accordingly, no 
allowance for unrealizable accounts has been recorded related to these accounts. 

Charity Care 

The Center provides care to indigent clients who meet certain criteri a under its chari ty care policy 
without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. The Center's direct and indirect costs 
for services furnished under the Center's charity care pol icy were approx imately $1,710,000 and 
$2,800.000 for the years ended June 30. 20 15 and 2014. respectively. The Center es timates the 
direc t and indi rect costs of providing charity care by applying the ratio of cos t to gross charges to 
the uncompensated charges. 

Investments and Investment Return 

The Center utilizes the equity method of accounting for investments in and advances to certain 
affi lia tes over which the Center exerc ises significant influence. Under this method, the Center's 
share of the net income or net losses of the affiliates is reflected as income or loss in equity 
inves tees and serves to increase or red uce the recorded amount of the Center' s investment in and 
adva nces to the affil iates. 

Investments in equity securiti es having a readily determinable fair value and in all debt securities 
are ca rried at fai r value. All other investments are valued at the lower of cost (o r fair value at time 
of donation, ifacquired by contribution) or market value. Investment return inclu des div idend, 
interest and other investment income; rea li zed and unrealized gai ns and losses on inves tments 
carried at fair va lue, and reali zed gains and losses on other investments. In vestment return that is 
initially restricted by dono r stipulat ion. and fo r which the restriction wi ll be satis fi ed in the same 
year, are included in unrestricted net assets. Other investment return is reflected in the statemen ts 
of operations as unrestricted or temporarily restricted based upon the existence and nature of any 
donor or legally imposed restrictions. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equ ipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 
each asset stated at cost. 

9 
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 


Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30, 2015 and 2014 


Long-lived Asset Impairment 

The Center eval uates the recoverability of the carrying value of long-li ved assets whenever events 
or circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If a long-lived asset is 
tested for recoverability and the undiscounted estimated future cash flows expected to result from 
the use and eventual disposition of the asset is less than the canying amount of the asset, the assel 
cost is adjusted to fair value and an impairment loss is recognized as the amou nt by which the 
calTying amount ofa long-lived asset exceeds its fair value. 

No asset impairment was recognized during the years ended June 30, 20 [5 and 2014. 

Contributions 

Unconditiona l promises to give cash and other assets are accrued at est imated fa ir va lue at the date 
each promise is received. The gifts are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted 
support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When 
a donor restriction expires, that is, wi1efl a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restri ction is 
accomplished , temporarily restricted net assets are reclass ified as unrestricted net assets and 
reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions 
are met within the same year as received are reported as unJestr icted contributions. Rece ipt of 
contributions which are conditional are reported as liabilities until the condition is eliminated or 
the contributed assets are returned to the donor. 

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by the Center has been limited by donors to a 
specific time period or purpose. 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenses 

The statements of operations include excess of revenues over expenses. Changes in unrestricted 
net assets whi ch are excluded from excess of revenues over expenses, consisten t with industry 
practice, include permanen t transfers to and from affiliates for other than goods and services. 

Donated Materials, Building Space and Services 

Donations of materials, building space and serv ices are recorded as both a reve nue and an expense. 
Donated materials are valued at their estimated current market values as determined by vefldor 
price lists and var ious other methods. Donated building space is valued at estimated fair rental 
value based upon rental s of similar real estate. 

Donated services are recognized as revenue at their estima ted fair value only when the services 
received create or enhance nonfinancial assets or require specia lized ski lls possessed by the 
individuals providing the service and the service would typically need to be purchased if not 
donated. 
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 


Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30, 2015 and 2014 


Functional Expense Cost Allocations 

For calculating unit costs of services, the Center al locates direct and traceable expenses from cost 
centers to serv ice programs based on the ratio of clinician time and compensation in each program 
to tota l clinician time and compensation. Units of service are determined on a programmatically 
dis tinc t basis . General and administrative costs are allocated for unit cosls calculations based on a 
percentage of expenses to total expenses as required by the Colorado Department of Human 
Services, Division of Behavioral Hea lth, Accounting Gnd Auditing Guidelines. 

Income Taxes 

The Centcr is exempt from income tax es und er Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Re venue Code 
and a similar provision of state law. With a few exceptions , the Center is no longer subjec t to U.S. 
federal examinations by tax authorities for years before 2012. 

Subsequent Events 

On November 12,20 15 , the Organization entered into a contrac t w ith a construction company to 
construct a building. The total commitment was approx imately $2 ,350,000. 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through the date of the Independent Auditor's Report. 
which is the date the financial statements were avai lable to be issued . 

Note 2: 	 Charity Care 

The Center provides care to indigent c lients who meet cenain criteria under its char ity care po licy 
w ithout charge or at amounts less than its established rates. The Center's direct and indirect costs 
for se rvices furnished under the Center ' s chari ty care pol icy were $2,469,90 1 and $3,4 18,872 for 
the yea rs ended June 30,2015 and 2014, respec ti vely . The Center has received approxima tely 
$758 .000 and $596,000 in 2015 and 2014, respectively. to subsidize charity services prov ided 
under its charity care policy. 

Note 3: 	 Related-party Transactions - Organizational Structure and Affiliated 
Organizations 

Systems was formed as a managemenl en tity for the purpose of overseeing the financial and 
administrat ive affairs of the charitable corpo rate affi liates including the Center. Systems incurs 
management. general and administrative expenses common to all of the affiliates and charges each 
affil iate, including the Center, a management fee on a pro-rata basis . Tota l management fee 
expense for the years ended June 30 , 2015 and 20 14 was $5 .826,259 and $4.912,384, respecti vely. 
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 

The Center leased space from the Foundation and other nonrelated entiti es for certain programs. 
Total re ntal and !ease expense for the years ended June 30. 20 15 and 2014 was $1,739,749 and 
S I ,666,847, respectively. 

The Center had transfe rs to affiliates of$6,500,000 and $5,600,000 for the years ended June 30, 
2015 and 2014. respect ively. Additionally. the Center advances funds to affi liates for cash flow 
purposes. 

The net amo unts du e to alJ affi li ates at June 30, 2015 and 20 14 are composed of the following: 

2015 2014 

Due to alli li ates £ (3,261,929) $ (2,385,80 1) 

Note 4: Investments in Behavioral Healthcare, Inc. 

Behavioral Healthcare, Inc. 

The Center is a member of Behavioral Heaithcare, Inc. (BH1) . BH I is organ ized as a not-for-profit 
corporat ion and is exempt from income taxes under Section 50 1(c)(3) . BHI was formed to act as a 
Medicaid intermediary related to the Medicaid capitation project in which the Center and two 
other mental health centers participate . Revenue from BH I, including co ntract wages, at June 30. 
2015 and 2014 is as foll ows: 

2015 2014 

Medi caid subcapitation $ 28,207,050 $ 23 ,057,170 
Wrap-around services 513,460 805.096 
Intcnsive sen'ice alternatives 183.276 190.945 
Inpatient 44 8.859 361,363 

29.352.645 24 .414.574 
COntraC1 wages 36.000 66,812 

S 29,388.645 $ 24.481 ,386 

Due to the possible overpayments discussed in Note 8 and from the above activity, an amollnt due 
to BH I of $2,400,510 and $0 as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. is recorded on the 
balance sheets. 
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 

BHJ maintains a separate equity accounl for each member and distributions and earnings are 
allocated to each member based upon their activity for the year. The in vestment is accounted for 
using the equity method of accounting. The fo llowi ng is a recap of the equity investment: 

2015 2014 

Beginning inwstrnem in BHI $ 1.573.914 $ 1.317.5 17 
Net gain on investment in equity investee 652.855 256.397 

Ending iJ1\'estment in BHI $ 2,226.769 $ 1,573.914 

The following is a condensed audited balance sheet of BHI as of June 30. 20 I 5 and 2014, and the 
related revenues. expenses and investment income for the years then ended. Information was 
obtained from audited financial statements presented in accordance with genera lly accepted 
accounting principles in the United States of America. 

2015 2014 

Current assets 5; 22.364.584 S 14.658.535 
Limited as to use assets 400.000 400.000 
Fixcd asscts 1, 195.558 1.033 

Total assets 23 .960,142 15.059.568 

Total liabilities 18.100.673 10.9 18.137 

Net assets - unrestricted $ 5.859469 $ 4.141.431 

Revenues $ I 18.398.281 $ 89.377.560 
E.xpenses ( 118 .076.53 5) (89.158.953 ) 
Other re venue 1.396.292 456.123 

Increase in net assets $ 1,718.038 $ 674.730 
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 
(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 


Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30, 2015 and 2014 


Note 5; Employee Benefit Plans 

401(k) Profit-Sharing Plan 

For fiscal years ended June 30,20 IS and 2014, all salaried employees who are age 21 , have 
completed one year of servi ce and have worked at least 1.000 hours are el igib le to participate in 
the defined contri but ion pension plan. Effective January 1. 2013, in order to participate in the 
Center' s matching and non-elective contributions, an emp loyee must have completed at least 1,000 
hours of service dUI'ing a consecutive 12-month period. The Cente r contributes annually to the 
plan an amount equal to 3% of the employee's compensation. In addit ion. the Center will match a 
percentage of pal1icipant contri but ions to the plan in an amount equal to the lesser of3% of 
earnings or 50% of the employee's contribution. 

Incl uded in general and administrat ive costs are plan expenses of$5 13,620 and S426.115 for the 
years ended June 3D, 20 15 and 20 14, respectively. 

Self-insured Health Care Plan 

The Center sponsors a health care plan for its employees. The plan provides benefi ts for 
hospitalization and med ical coverage. The Center is self-insured for the first $50.000 of claims per 
year, per insured ind ividual with the excess reinsured with a commercial insurance company lip to 
an aggregate amount of $1 ,000,000. Plan expenses for the years ended June 30 , 20 15 and 2014 
were $1 ,630,167 and $1,271 .115, respectively. 

As of June 30. 20 15 and 201 4, the Center has recorded a liability related to outstandi ng claims of 
$2 10,863. which is included in accrued liabilities on the balance sheets. 

Note 6: Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes: 

2015 2014 

Donated use of bui lding $ 1.203,730 $ 

Other .nentnl he~lth programs 500 

$ 1.203.730 $ 500 

Net assets were rel eased from donor restrictions by incurring expenses sa tisfying the restricted 
purposes in the amounts of S500 and SO for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 

(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc .) 


Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30, 2015 and 2014 


Note 7: Functional Expenses 

The Cenler's expenses for the years en ded June 30, 20 15 and 2014 relate to the following 
activities: 

2015 20 14 

Mental hea lth ~e l'\ ' ices 

Other programs 
G~neral and adminislrali\'e 

$ 27.560.849 
550,481 

5.826,252 

5) 21,633.20-1 
537.719 

4.9t2.384 

$ 33 .937.582 $ 27.083.307 

Note 8: Significant Estimates and Concentrations 

Accounting principles genera lly accepted in the Uni ted States of America requ ire disclosure of 
certai'n significant est imates and current vulnerabilities due to certain concentra tions. Those 
matters include the following: 

Allowances for Net Client Service Revenue Adjustments 

Estimates of allowances for adjustments inc luded in net client service revenue are desc ribed in 
Note I. 

Professional Liability Coverage and Claims 

The Center pays fi xed prem iums for annual professional liabili ty insurance coverage under a 
claims-made policy. Under such policy, only claims made and repoli ed to the insurer are covered 
during the policy term, regardless of when the incident giving rise to the cla im occurred. The 
Cente r is not aware of allY unasserted claims, unreported incidents or claims outstanding which are 
expected to exceed professional liability insurance coverage limits as of June 30, 20 15. 

Revenue Concentration 

Approximately 74% and 75% of the Center' s unrestricted revenues for the years ended June 30, 
2015 and 2014 respectively, was the res ult of the subcapitation managed care contract with BHI to 
provide mental health managed care services for Medicaid recipients. Under the subcapi tat ion 
agreement, the Center will be required to provide alimental health services for any clients 
(Covered Persons) participat ing under the Colorado Medicaid program within the covered area for 
fixed, month ly prepaid contracted amounts based on Med icaid recipien t categories for all Covered 
Perso ns. The contract with BHI expires on June 30, 20 19. 
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Community Reach Center, Inc. 

(A Member of Community Reach Center Systems, Inc.) 


Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30, 2015 and 2014 


BHI has previously been notified of possible overpayments for various fiscal years, related to 
cap itation payments made by the State of Colorado for ineligible clients and has recorded an 
estimated liability for the recoupments which has been passed through to the Center. BHI intends 
to investigate the assertions. The estimated receivable and payable recorded at BHI described 
above could differ materially in the near term which could affect the subcapitation payments of the 
Center. 
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